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FOREWORD

Any organization or individual having — however limited = a hand in
the preparation of this volume, or in its publication, may feel a just
pride in being associated with so valuable a project.

As a co-sponsor, The Mississippi State Conference of B'nai B'rith
considers itself privileged in the opportunity of such association.

lothing short of prodigious labor was involved in the research that
made this volume possible. Workers throughout the state who have taken
considerable pains with their contributions are +to be Warmly congratula-
tede.

Hever before has so comprchensive end so accurate a survey bcen
madc of the collective endeavors of Jews in this state. Only onc other
state — Michigan =- has such a Jcwish Inventory preparcd by a Statc His-
torical Rccords Survey Project, according to our information,

If any of the dctails presented should be discovercd to be incom-
plete, this is no more than testimony to the vast scope of the endeavor.
The scicntific procedurcs cmploycd mcasurc up to high standards of his-
toriography.

Herc ore the objective data that bespeak the moral and spiritual
contributions of the dcscendants of an ancicnt pcoplc, thc adhecrcnts of
o significant historical rcligion, to the welfarc of a great common-
wealthe

This presentation is a symbol of the fincst spirit of Democracy,
promulgatcd of old by the Founding Fathcrs of Americe and infuscd, in=-
cradicably, in thc very bone and marrow of this blesscd country's daily
istifs

STANLEY R. BRAV
Rabbi
Chairman, Mississippi
STATE CONFERENCE OF B!'NAI B'RITH




PREFACE

The Historical Rocords Survey Projeccts of tho Work Projccts Administration
arc cngaged, as onc phasc of their cxtonsive program, in preparing and publish=
ing invontorios of the church archivos of all denominations. The Inventory of
Jowish Congrogations and Organizations is the sccond of this naturc published
in Mississippi by tho Mississippi Historical Récords Survey Projocte It is
hoped that it will be of sorvice to the clorgy, mombors of religious organiza-
tions, students of the social scicnces, and thosc ongaged in gencological ro-
scarch, Information contained in this invontory has boon acquired by personal
interview and by research in printed sources, and in church, county, and State
archiveses In view of the nature of this undertaking, there will likely be cer=
tain omissions and deficiencies, but the Survey has made every effort to ate
tain the highest degree of accuracys.

The careful and meticulous initial research and the field work in the
counties, and the organizing of the data contained in this volume were donc
under the suporvision of Nash K. Burger, Projcct Techniciane Other members of
the Mississippi staff who made cxcellent contribution to the inventory were:
Comnie Z. Pearson, unit forcman; Virginia Plyler; Fred Bocachom; Elmise Fant;
William Me Price; and Catherine Shicldse  Much of the original rescarch in the
countics was prosccuted by field workcrs, working in their own communitics.

The Mississippi Historical Records Survey Project wishes to express its
deep appreciation of the interest manifested in this inventory by individuals
throughout the State, and for the contributions they made toward its publica-
tione For the assistance given by Dr. D. Hs Orkin, former secretary of the
Mississippi State Conference of B'nal B'rith, and Meyer A. Lewis, Jr., present
scerctary; and by the many Rabbis who edited and reviewed the entrics for each
Congregation and Orgenization, we arc profoundly gratoful,

We wish also to thank the officials of the Work Projects Administration,
and Dr, William D, McCain, Director of the Mississippi Department of Archives
and History and official sponsor of the projet¢t, who have given the Survey
their cordial cooperation; and the co=-sponsor, The Mississippi State Conference
of B'nai B'rith, whose support made the publication of this inventory possible.

The Mississippi Historical Records Survey Project has followed general
rogulations and procedures applicable to all WPA projcet unitse. The inventory
was prepared in accordance with tochnical instructions rccecived from the Wash-
ington officc of the Historical Rccords Survey Projocts. Donald A, Thompson,
assistant archivist in charge of church archives, roviowed the volume boeforo
publication, In addition, the liississippi Survey has profitod in all phases
of its work by thc constructive advice and criticism of John Ce L. Andrcassen,
regional supcrvisor of the Survey.

A list of publications issued by the Mississippi Historical Records Survey
Projcct appears after the index of the volumc,

Robert E. Strong,

State Supervisor

The Mississippi Historical Records
Survey Projcct

219 East Capitol St.
Jackson, Nississippi
November 1940
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EDITORIAL NOTES

Organization Datcs

The general plan of ontry places the congregations in chronologicel order
of orgonisation. TFormal coagregationnl organization for reguler religious
services frogueatly cume some time after orgenization of a cemetery or of a
benevolent socictye ilowever, the date given is, so far as it is possible to
ascertain it, the date after which religious scrvices worc more or less rogular.

TForm of Entry

— e

The cntry for cach congregation or organization adhorcs to o uniform
stylece Following thc entry number appcar the neme of the congregotion or organ-
ization, thc orgonization date and date of demisc (if inactive), the strcot ad-
dress, and city or town, and county inwhich the organizoation is locatede Each
entry is divided into two or three paragraphs. The first paregraph gives, wher-
cver possible, the organization history, tho building history, the first scttled
rebbi, and the present robbi. The sccond paragraph gives bibliography pertein-
ing cxclusively to the particular congregations The third parcgraph is devoted

A

to the rccords of the congregatione

Mississippi Lew Pertaining to Religious Organizetions

Religious bodies in Mississippi may be incorporatcd.

In Mississippi all corporations arc formed only under the general laws
(Consta., 1890, sec. 178)s Charters of incorporation arc approved by the
Attorncy-General, signed by the Governor, and reccorded by the Scerctary of State,
as well as in the office of thc clerk of the chancery court as recorder in the
county of the domicile of tho corporation (Code 1930, scc. 4131)e Prior to the
adoption of the Constitution of 1890, charters for corporations worc in many
ctses granted by specific acts of the Legislaturce

Religious bodics may, under certain conditions, acquire property by devises
and bequests, although, prior to 1940, such becquests had boen generally prohibe-
iteds (For & morc detailed study of the mortmain law end other stetutes relot-—
ing to religious orgonizations in Mississippi, scec Mississippi Historical Re=-
cords Survey Projcet, Inventory of tho Church Archives of Mississippi, Protes=—
tant Episcopal Church,” Jackson, 1940, ppe iv-v) T

Extinct Congregations

Congregations no longer active are denoted by an asterisk and completed
datese

Abbreviations

Ce sscesonsececssccscesssessscsecosssssescsensssensssssesacessssslDOUD
Conste. eosceoccosserscoesossssessasascsssssssassscsnsesssnssssConstitution
ed. ©ov . eeic1.es0esc0eseeseseessvsocevsssesasensnscssssssscrscanseCditor
Ibid, e0ra-deeveecreerescsssesensssnsescsscessscscssesse in the sotme place
L. Ie @onececeusssescesssssssssssssssssscssscssscssv s LOWS OFf Mississippi
Misse Gscesssuvensssecessassasesssserssassssnnscassscscansese Migslasippl

ne de SPessebseacsecerssnsssseahbnssateehossneaseneaakisneehasbasesllodats
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HISTORICAL SKETCH OF JEWS IN MISSISSIPPI

Thet there werc individuel Jews emong the early settleors in the French,
Spanish, and English colonies in the lowor Mississippi valley is evident.
In 1724, Governor Bienville promulgated, in the name of Louis XV, a set of
laws known &s the "Black Code," the first provision of which declared that
all Jews were to be expelled from the colony of Louisianae« This included the
present statc of Mississippi.l After 1763, the southern half of the presont
state was a part of British West Florida and thc presence of Jows in the col-
ony is indicated by the issuance of an order forbidding them to votc.2 A Jow,
Palachio, is mentioned as in New Orleans in 1766, and Jews by the name of
Isreel, Solomon, and Depalachio were in Mobile in 1765.4

In 1789, Major Samucl S. Forman of New Jorsey wrote that, "in the village
of Natchez resided Monsier [sig] and Madom lMesenteoS--Spenish Jews, I think--
who were the most kind and hospitable of people."6

Mississippi did not become an American territory, in fact, until 1798
and & state in 1817. In the 1820's, the number of Jows in the centire United
Statos was estimated at 6,000.7 Probably not over 100 of these were living
in Mississippie. As to when Jewish services were first held within the bound=-
eries of Mississippi no rocord has boen preserved. It was likely in the cerly
years of tho nineteenth century and cortainly in the Natchez soctione8 These
first services were undoubtodly Orthodox (secc Eatry 5)s

Points of early Jewish scttlement connocted by river or land travel with
Mississippi were: New Orleans, where the well-known Judah Touro settled in
1802; Montgomery, Alabama, on the site of which, Abrahem lordecai settled in
1789; and Cincinnati and Louisville, points of embarkation for many settlers
coming down the Ohio and Mississippi rivers.to the lower southe9

It was as peddlers and small merchants that most of the eerly dJews of
Mississippi supported themselves. The greater part were from Gormany, &l-
though & few of the very carliest were from Englend. Theso Gormen Jewish
immigrants were hard-working, enterprising men, who, as often as not, start-
ed out with no more stock then could be carried on their backs.lO

T:_mﬁﬁéyikﬁ;fﬁi§§¥}é:>?f?fﬂgfg;§—bf 7+ Simon Wolf, 2&3 American ggﬂ_&s
Louisiana, New Orleans, 1903, Patriot, Soldier and Citizen,
T4¢h Bdition), 4 vols., I, 362. Philadelphia, 1895, 67. Hore=

2. Peter J. Hamilton, Colonial Mobile, after cited as, Wolfe.

Boston and New York, 1910, 543. 8., Josoph Dunbar Shiclds, Natchez,

e Tbidas 2566 Its Barly History, Louisville,

45 Thide, 295, 1930, 40-41l.

5. The neme is given &s Monsanto, in 9. Lec J. Levinger, A History of the
the Spanish records at Natchoze Jews in tho Unitod States, Cincin-
See, Chancery Clerk, Adams County, nati, 1930, 150-154. Heoreafter
Netchez, "Translations of the cited us, Levinger.

Spanish Records", Book C., p. 315 10.  Ibids, 180=189
6. Samuecl S. Formen, Narrative of &

Journey Dovm the oiHE“g@_ﬁié’s‘E-
sippi in 1789-90, Cincinnati, 1888,

56.
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Historical Skotch

Tho establishment of cemeteries usuclly preceded the orgenization of con-
gregotionse In 1849, Jacob Cchen and Jacob Schwarz, peddlers, bought at Wood-

ville (Entry 14) a smull piece of land for fifty dollars, whorein they buried

e fellow peddler, Honry Burgonccel This land is still used &s o cometery.
Likewiso, carly Jowish settlers at Grend Gulf bought & cemetery, which was
abandoned when the inroads of the Mississippi river brought oan end to the

life of thut river port (sce Entry 9).2 Natchez Jews bought a cemetery and
begen orgonization in 1840, completing the organizetion of Congregoetion B'nai
Isrccl (Bntry 6), 1843. Deeds to the Jowish property in Port Gibson (Entry 9)
hoeve not been located, but organizod Jewish life there certainly dates to pre-
Civil Wer timese The Vicksburg and Columbus congregations likewisc date from
the 1840's (Entries 7 und 8 rospectively)s. A comectory was bought at Jackson
in 1854 and Congrogation Beth Isrzel organized in 1861 (Entry 10)e

By 1861, Jows wore established with congregations or as individuals in
most of the towns in the states In the War Between the Statos, they enlisted
from all parts of Mississippi to assist the Confederacy, although mony of
those Jews wore of Europotn or oven of Northorn origine Simon Wolf has listed
158 Jewish soldiers from Mississippi in the Confederate Arm.y,3 but his list is
clearly not completes It is possible to discover from almost any county furnish-
ing Jowish scldiers teo the Confodorate Army, ncmes not on Mr. Wolf's list.?

Mex Frouenthal, whe enlistoed ot Summit, Miss., with sovcral other Jews,
is one Jewish Confedoratc soldicr whese expleocits have been rccordeds On
the outbreak of the war he enlisted in Company A, Sixteenth Regimont, Missis=
sippi Volunteerse Fraucnthal fought under Gene. Stonewall Jackson in the
valley of Virginia, wnd served till tho end of the war, oscaping with slight
woundse Gene Ewcll is quoted as saying of him, "If I had ten thouscnd mon
like Frauenthel I would drive thce Yoankoes into the Potomec before night."
Frauenthal particularly distinguished himsclf at the "Blcody Anglo" in the
buttle of Spottsylvania Court Houso (Mcy 12, 1864). Colonel A. T. Watts,
(who was o priveato in the same company as Frauonthal) wrote after the war that
"Fraucnthal, & little Jew, had the heart of & lion. For several hours ho
stood at tho immediateo point of contact (the apex of the angle) under the most
torrific hail of lead, and cooly and deliberately loaded and fired without
cringing."o

Mississippi sent also five Jowish brothers to the ware. One of these was
errayod on the side of the Union against his four Confederatec brothers, an
oxample of the spirit of loyalty tec convictione. They were: Edward Jones,
50th Illinois Infentry; S. Ae. Jonas, Julian Jones, and Major Charles He Jonas,
&ll in Barksdalo's Mississippi Rogiment, &nd Benjamin Fe. Jonas, who enlisted in
a: Louisione regiment. Mejor Iscac Scherck, on the staff of Goneral Herdee,
we.s onc of the highest ranking Jewish officers from Mississippie®

1. W. Wilner, "Mississippi” in The ty); Jacob and Asron Rosonbaum
Jewish Encyclopedia, Now York, (Komper County) wero Confederate
TOFeT RO s i VT Tl o 619 soldiors not listed by Wolf.

2. Ibide No deecd found. 5. Honry Cohen, "Mex Freuonthal",

3. TWolf, 424. The Jewish Encyclopedia, New

4, For extmple, I. Moise (Pike Coun= York, 1916, XII Volss, V, 502s

ty); Godfrey Frank (Boliver Coun- 6. Wolf, 109




Histerical Skctch

Of groat embarrassment to the Federal government, in 1862, was an order
issued by Genecral U. 5. Grant barring all Jewish traders from his part of the
South, which included Mississippi. Goneral Grant had been troubled by traders
going with the troops, some of whon speculated in cotton and traded with tho
Confecdoracye.

Numbers of these speculators end traders were Jews from Cincinnatia.l
Grant's orders in November and Dccerber, 1862, showed an increasing toendency
to place the cntire blome on Jewss

His comrunicetion from Oxford, Miss., to the Assistant Sccrotery of Wer,
Dece. 17, was as follows:

Hdgrs, Thirteenth A. C., Dept of tho Toenn.,
Oxford, Miss., Decocrber 17, 1862

Hone« Co P. Wolcott,
Assistant Secretary of Wer, Weshington, D. Ce:

I have long since bolieved that in spite of all the vigilance that can
be infused into post commanders, the specic regulations of the Treasury
Depertnent have been violated, and that mostly by Jews and other unprincipal-
ed traderss So well satisfied have I beon of this thet I instructed the comn=
manding officer at Colurbus to refuse all permits to Jews to come Scuth, and
I have frequently had then expelled from the department, but they come in with
thoir carpet-sacks in spite of all that can be done to prevent it. The Jows
sesn to be a privileged class that can trevel evorywhere. Thoy will land at
any woodyard on the river and meke their way through the country. If not por-
mitted to buy cotton themsclves they will act as agents for some one clse, who
will be at & military post with & Treasury pernit to receive cotton and pay for
it in Treasury notes which the Jow will buy up at en agroed rate, paying golde

There is but one way that I know of %o rcach this casc; that is, for Gove
ernnent to buy &ll the cotton at & fixed rate and send it to Cairo, Saint
Louis, or some other point to be sclde Then @ll tradors (they arc a curse to
the erny) might be expelled.

Us Se Grant,
Mo jor General2

The same dey Grant issued the following order expelling all Jews from his
Departnent.

Hdgrs. 13th A. C., Dept of the Tonn.

General Orders)
Holly Springs, December 17,1862

Now i1 )

1. Jamos Wilford Garner, Reconstruc=

1

Under the Direction of the Secretory
tion in Mississippi, Now York, of Wer, by Licut. Col. Robert Ne Scott,
1901, ppw S0<8ls: Third Ue S« hrtillery, Washingbon;

2. The Woar of the Rebecllion: Prepared, 1887, Secries I, volume XVII, Purt II,

421-422




Historical Sketch

The Jews, a&s a class violating every regulation of trade established by
the Treasury Department and also department orders, are hereby expelled
from the department within twenty-four hours from the receipt of this order.

Post commenders will see that all of this class of people be furnished
posses and required to leave, and any one returning after such notification
will be arrcsted and held in confinement until an opportunity occurs of send—
ing them out as prisoners, unless furnished with permit from headquarters.

No passes will be given these people to visit headquarters for the pur-
pose of meking personal application for trade permitse

By order of Maje Gen. Ue Se Grant:
Jno. A. Rawlins,
Assistant Adjutant—Generall

This discriminatory order dirccted against Jewish traders and no others
wes rovoked after an appeal to President Lincoln by Northern Jowse?

After the Civil War, the migration of Jows into Mississippi wes continued
and several now congregations wore formed. Temple Beth Israel, Meridian (Entry
11)woss sterted in 1868 and Ohcl Jacob Synagogue (Entry 15) in the same city,
wes begun in 1880. Orgenized Jewish sorvices in Canton (Entry 12) began in
1877. The Hebrew Union Congrcgation, Greenville, (Entry 16) an outgrowth of
Jowish sorvices begun in 1869, wes orgenized in 1880.

In this period, on July 8, 1873, a nation-wide association of Jewish con-
grogations, the Union of American Hebrow Congrogations, wos formed "composcd
chiefly of the Reform clement, and established largely through the persistent
effortse « « of Isnac M. Wisoc."

Moritz Loth, prcsident of Rabbi Wisc's congrogation in Cincinnati, in
his annual mcssage of Oct. 10, 1872, hed rccommended that the five Cincinnati
congregations join in a call, for the orgonization meeting. The call wus
issucd March 30,1873, Dolegates from 34 congregutions met in Cincinneti, July
8, adopted the title and later incorporateds

The objects of the organization were: to establish end maintain institut-
jons for instruction in the highcr branches of Hebrew literature and Jewish
theology, with the nccessary preparatory schools in such cities of thosc states
as may be hercafter designated; to provide meons for the relief of Jews from
political oppression and unjust discriminction, cnd for rendoring them aid for
their intcllectual elevation; to promote religious instruction and oncourage
the study of the Scripturcs cnd of the tenects and history of Judaisme

To achieve these objeocts, plens for the Hebrew Union College were begun
by the first council, which met in Cleveland in July 1874; a Botrd of Declegates

1. Tbid., 424, Hebrew Congrogations", Jewish
2. Levinger, 198-200 Encyclopedia, XII Vols., Now

3. Leo Wise, "Union of Americon York, 1916, XII, 344.



{istorical Sketch

i on Civil Rights was created with its seat in liashington, D. C., Simon Wolf

: - Dbeing its chairmen; and a Board of Managers on Synagogue and (Sebbath) School
Extension, was placed in charge of the work formerly carried on by the Hebrew
Sebbath-School Union of Americe, which went out of existerce in January 1905.

| The Union is governcd by & council which meets biennially, the members

of which are clected by the various congregations. Men or women m&ty S€Irves
During the intervals between the mectings of the council the Union is governcd
by an cxecutive board, elccted by the councile This oxdcutive board elects the
Board of Governors of the Hobrow Union College end the Board of tanagers of
Synagoguc ond (Sebbath) School Extensione™ Mississippi Reform congrogations

at Clevcland, Groenville, Groenwood, Hutticsburg, Jackson, Loxington, Mcridian,
Netchcz, Port Gibson, und Vicksburg hove joined the Union. Permancnt orgonize-
tion of thc Mississippi=Louisisns-Arkanses rogion of tho Union of American
Hobrew Congregations wes schicved at o mceting in Vicksburg, in Fcbruery 194042

Barly Jewish serviccs in the State, at such conters as Natchez, Woodville,
end Vicksburg were Orthodox, but, at proscnt, most congregations follow tho Ro-
form rites and, ©s indicatcd above, meny arc members of the Union of Amcrican
Hebreow Congregationse At Clarksdale (Entry 19) Orthodox, Reform, and Conser-
vative rituals ere used in the same buildinge Ohcl Jacob Congregation, Meridian
(Entry 15), end Ahaveth Rayim congregation, Greenvood (Entry 17) ore definitely

6

Orthodox congregotions in the Stute today. The Union of Orthodox Jewish Congre=-
gotions of Amcrica wos organized in 1898 and incorporated in Yew York in 1915.8

Both Mississippi Orthodox congregations bolong to the Union of Orthodox Jewish

Congregationse

As the numbor of congregutions in the Stute has incrcased Jowish Auxilia-
ry organizetions have becomec morc sctive. Theo International Order of B'nail
Brith now has 13 lodges in Mississippi (Entry 1); the Nationel Federotion of
Temple Sisterhoods, cstoblished in 1913, now hes 16 effiliates in the State
(Entry 2). Hadessah, tho women's Zionist organization of America, has three
chepters in Mississippi (Entry 3), while the Stute orgenizations of Jewish
Youth, bunded togother in 1940 to fom the Mississippi Federction of Tomple
Youth (Entry 4), which consists ot preosent of 7 chapterse

The mombership of Jowish congregations in Hississippl was 746 in 19063
1,928 in 19163 2,871 in 19263 and 2,897 in 1936.% 1In 1936, 15 congregations
roportcd owning buildings for worship, and the vaeluc of tho 13, whose value wos
reported, wos @227,500.g

Jowish expansion in the latter part of the nincteonth and the twentieth

1. ILco Viiso, "Union of Amcricen Hebrew Poyne, Jackson, July 1940.
i Congrocations," Jowish Encyclopedis, 4. Unitod Statcs Department of
! XII Vols., New York, 1916, XII, S4d e Commcrec, Burcou of the Census,

Consus of Religious Bodics, 18363

2. Anonymous, "Unit of Hobrew Group
Jowish Congregpotions, Meshington,

Organizcd", in Jockson Clarion

Ledger, Fob. 12, 1940, Govorunent Printing Office, 1940,
3. Lottor of Loco S. Hilsenrod, Exccutive D45
Dircctor, Union of Orthodox Jowish 5. Ibide, ps 5.

Congrepetions of Aamcrice, to Ethel

Rtk 2 e



Historical Sketch

century has continued cener: 1ly over the State but has been nost marked in the

&
Dclte soction, wherc all the towns of any size ond most of the smclleor scttle-
o
4 i

ments hove o number of successful and encrgetic Jowish busincss and profession=
al mon, meny of whom, in addition, own forns and plantations or cngage in the
buying oand seclling of cotton. The success of Jowish merchents in the Dclta,
wherc the legro population is grector then the white, has beon lcid by a recent
scholar to the fact that "the Jows have trocted negrocs with courtesy, or at
loost without discourtcsy, in strictly busincss rclotions," and that tho Jows,
"porgein with the negrocs and thc nogrocs like thise « o Southorn whitcs tond
to bc brusque and ‘tako=it-or-lcave=it! with the negro, while Jows are more
considerctoe, putting business bofore caste principles."

In rccont years, in cvery phase of Mississippi's business or social lifo
Jows have beon tetive end influcnticle The placc taken in busincss ond come
nunity lifc in the cibics of tho Stute, for excnple, is a notable once Active
in many fields in the Statot's three largest cities have been nembers of tho
Dreyfus, Lehaen, Hart, hschor, gel, Kehn,Orkin,and Lowis familics of Jocksong
the Rothenberg, Threefoot, Morks, Roscenbaum, Klein, Myer, and Winter femilics
of Meridian; and the Ricc, Switzer, Weil, Fried, Klinc, and Tcllor fonnilics
of Vicksburge &t lecast two Vississippi Jews of today are natisnally knowns
Devid Cohn, of the Delta, for his writing, and Lehman Engel, of Jackson, for
musical composition and directione Earlier, in the latter ycars of the nine=
teonth cenbury, Rabbi Hermon Me Bicn of Vicksburg, had achicved o reputation
as a poct and novelist, his Bcn=Boor, A Story of the Anti-fessiah,2 published
1891, being especially populcre e R

¥hile participoting actively in the gemeral life of the State, }Mississippi
nmily and rcligious customse A

Jows havo rotaincd an attachment to their fa
rocont study of Jewish fomily solidority in a Hississippi city moade by Rabbil
Stanlcy Re Brov, of Vieksburg, gove "qcfinite credence to tho popular cssumption
of strongth in Jowish fauily solidarity." Dr. Brav's study discovcrod also,
howovor, that that foamily solidarity Wis norc rolative then it is roale o o

onc is not imprcssede o e with on amezing amount of, what might be called,
tabsolute! family solidaritye. « . Cortainly the strength of Jewish femily life
in Vicksburg on the fississippi today, is not the strongth of the Jowish femily
in the ghetto of Presburg on the Denube in tho 16th and 17th contury «"®

1. John Dollard, Ceastc end Closs in & "Ben-Hur." Pt. E_Historical phon-
Sowthorn Town, Yalo Dmivorsity = toemogorite The wandoring gontilo,
Pross, Now Haven, 1937, 129-130. E_CAnquEBE.Eﬂ Sucts "wendering

2. Bon-Beor; A Story of EEE_§nti- Jew®., Baltimore, I, Frodenvre.1d

Wossioh in two divisionss Pte 1 Cowpeny, 1891, ix, 528 ppe

Lunar fhEZgliﬂs, The man in the 3, Stenlecy R. Brov, chish Femil
noon, o countorpert of Viallece's Solidarity, Vicksburg, 1940, 68=69.
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INVENTORY OF THE ARCHIVES OF JEWISH ORGANIZATIONS
LND COHGREGATIONS IN MISSISSIPPI

1, INTERNATIONAL ORDZR OF B'NAI B'RITH, Mississippi State Conference,
10385«

Twelve Mississippi lodges of B'nai B'rith organized, at Vicksburg, in
1935, the Mississippi State Conference of the order. Mississippi lodges at
thet time were at: ~Cleveland. (Entry 26); Meridian (Entry 11); Greenville
(Entry 16); Clarksdale (Entry 19); Natchez (Entry 6); Hattiesburg (Entry 25);
Columbus (Entry 8); Lexington (Entry 21); Laurel (Entry 23); Jackson (Entry
10); Vicksburg (Entry 7); and Greenwood (Entry 20). A thirteenth lodge, the
Northeast Mississippi lodge, was orgenized in 1938, centering at Tupelo.
There arc 621 members in Mississippie. Prosent officers of the Mississippi
State Conforence are: iex Friedman, Clarksdale, chairmen; Rabbi Stanley R.
Brav, Vicksburg, First Vice-chairmen; Gebe Jacobson, Meridian, Second Vice-
chairmen; Cyril Hart, Jackson, troasuror; Meyor A. Lewis, Jr. Jackson, soc=
retary; Mosc Hyman, Paco, Honorary chairmone. The Mississippi Stato Confercnce
is a part of District Grand Lodge No. 7, organized in 1873, with hooadquerters
at New Orleoons, 331 Whitney Building, HMyron M. Goldmen, sccretury. District
Grand Lodge No. 7 includes tho Statos of Alabome, Arkensss, Louisicna, Miss=
issippi, Oklahoma, Tennossec, cnd Texas, which contain 7,280 membors of the
ordor.

The Intornationzl Order of B'mai B'rith is the largest and oldest Jewish
froternal orgonizotione It was founded at New York in 1843 by & numbor of
Gormen Jows hoaded by Honry Joncs, for the purposo of instilling the prin-
ciplos of morality among the followers of the Mosaic faith, uniting them on
e. common pletform end inculeoting cherity, benevolence and brotherly loves
A lerge emount of philenthropic work has alwcys been @ notable footure of the
order. The present most important institutions supported by the B'nai B'rith
and tho dotes of thoir eostoblishment aro: Clovolend Orphen Home (1868);
Donver Jowish Hospital for Consumptives (1899); Leo N. Levi Memoriel Hospital,
Hot Springs (1914). Rocently much cttention has beon paid Jewish work in
collogos by moans of the Hillel Foundetion esteblished 1923. The Hilloel is &
democratic group of students in & college, governed by o Student Council and
its cctivities include classes, religious services, discussion groups, &nd
social functions. An Anti=-Defamation Lecgue is also sponsored by the T. O« Be
Bs, with the aim of "clesring the stege end the screen, the school and the
press, of meterial thut defames Jewish charecter and personality."

See: M. Ellinger, "B'nei B'rith or Sons of the Covenant," in The Jewish
Encyclopedia, New York, 1916, XII vols., II, 275-276s Abrom L. Sacher,
WBinai B'rith", Curront History, LI, 8 (April 1940) pp. 24-27.

For o listing of tho records of District Grend Lodge #7, sce tho forth-
coming Inventory of the Church and Syncgogue Archives of Louisiona: Jewish
Congrogationse

Minutes and Correspondence of Mississippi State Conference B'nai B'rith,
1937~-, 1 file drawer, kept by the sccrotory, Meyer Lowis, Jre., in his office,
815 Standard Lifc Bldg., dJecksone
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Mississippi Lodge (Vicksburg), orgunized 1867: Minutos and Coash Book,
1937--, 1 vol., kept by the secretary, Som Albrecht, at his home, 1405
Mulberry Ste

Ezro Lodge (Natchez), orgenized 1870: Cash Book and List of Members, 1896-
1905, 2 vols., kept by Rabbi Meyer Morx, &t the temple (Scc Entry 6); Minutes,
1940--, 1 vol., includes list of members and financiul rocords, kopt by
Hormen Wassermoen, Franklin and Commerce Sts.

Joseph Herz Lodge (Columbus), orgenized 187l: Minutes, 1879--, 1 vol.,
containing also members and financial records, kopt by Morris Lee Rosonzweig,
in the Lodge Room in the bascment of the temple.

Deborah Lodge (Greenvillc), orgenized 1871: Minutes, 1910--, 1 vol.,
conteining also list of members, kept by He Stein, 207 Washington Avoe

Monasseh Lodge (Jackson), orgonized 1873: Minutos, 1873-98; 1898-1930;
1930-~, 3 volse, all containing some fintncial records, volumes I and II kopt
by tho treasuror, Se. Cyril Hort ot tho Capitol National Bank; Vol. III kept by
the secrctary, Ben Himelstoin, Deposit Guaranty Bank Bldge Mombership Applica=
tions, 1873-1909; 1918; 1918-31 (1918-31 incomplete), 1 vol. kopt by the troas=
uror, S. Cyril Hart, at the Capitol National Bonke

xJudith Lodgo (Canton), organized 1868: Minutes, 1905-34, 1 vole, kopt
by Julius Loeb, at his store, Liberty cnd Contor Stss Incorporation: L. Me
1871, ppe 538-39.

Asaph Lodge (Meridian), organized 1877: Minutcs, 1907--, 2 vols., kopt
by seccrotary,As C. Silvermen; ot his officc at Pooples Gas Companys

Albort Woilor Lodgoe (formerly Mark Stein Lodge) (Groomwood), orgonized
1894¢ Minutes, 1939--, 1 vol., kept by Horry Diomond, Whittington Bldge

*Abram Lodge (Brookhaven), orgonizoed 1898: Inactives WNo rocords found.

Hattiesburg Lodge (Hattiesburg), corgonized 1908: Minutos, 1935==-, 1 vol.,
kept by sccrotary, Gus K. Merks, at his homo, Southorn Avc.

Lourel Lodge (Leurcl), organized 1910: Btnai B'rith Recerds, 1939--, 1
vole., includes mombors, minutes, and financial matters, kopt by president, Dave
Metison, at Fine Brothers=Matison Coe

Isador Hyman Lodge (Loxington), orgcnized 1926: List of mombors, 1985--,
1 vole., includos alse finencial rocords, kept by Nathan Schur, Loxington.

Dolta Lodge (Clarksdale), orgenized 1927: HMinutes, 1927--, 4 vols.,
kopt by the secerctoary, Harry Megdovitz, 374 Isstquent Avoe

Adoth Isracl Lodge (Cloveland), organizod 1928: Minutes, 1929==, 1 vol.,
includes list of membors, kept by the secretury, Marcel Davidow, Cloveland.

Northoast Mississippi Lodge (members from thirtcen north Mississippi
towns), orgenized 1938: Minutes, 1938--, 1 vol.; Mombership Ledger, 1938=--,
1 vol.; Finencicl Records, 1938-~, 1 vol., 21l kept by the sccretary-treocsuror;
Sol Weinor, 128 Mein St., Tupcloe.
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NATIONAL FEDLRATION OF TZ/PLE SISTERHOODS, Mississippi State Federe=-
tion, 1934--s

Orgenizod 1924 by delegotes from Sisterhoods at Meridian, Juckson, Loxe
ington, Natchez, Vicksburg, Yazoo City and Centone. The orgonizing mecting wes
held in the Edwerds Hotol, Jackson, with Mrs. A. He Schwartz, Jockson, 08
chairmane

In the latter yoars of the 19th century, therc spreng up in largo and
small cities all over thc country, groups of what were thon known as "Jowish
Ladics! Aids" or "Jowish laedies' Bonovolont Socictics." They werc comprised
mainly of wives of the members of tho congregations and the work which they
did was largely of & philanthropic naturce

As yocrs wont on cnd the nceds of the congregation grow, groduclly those
socictics begen to become definitely interested in promoting congregational
sintorosts For instence, thoir mombers raiscd funds to buy a new Alter Cloth
or furnish & Torahe They also tought in the Sabbath School and arranged on=
tortaimments for the childrons. Finally thoy bcoeoeme so definitcly a fector in
congregational life that these women's adjuncts folt the nced of a central ore
ganizations

On Jonuary 21lst, 1913, fifty-two ropresentatives of wonon's organizations
fron congregations met in Cincinnati et the cell of Mre Je Wolter Freidborg,
then preosident of the Union of fmerican Hebrow Congregationse It was at this
mooting that the National Federction of Tenple Sistorhoods was formed with lMrs.
Abrem Simon of Washington as prosideate 8ix Netional Coamittocs were organized

to carry on the worke

Projects of the National Foderation arc: to assist the Hobrew Union Col-
lege, locatcd in Cineinnati, ond the oldest Amcricon Hebrew Theological Somi=-
nary; to intonsify Jewish lkmowlodge, obscrvonce, and adjustment and to scrve
Jowish ond humanitaricn causes; to coopernte with Jowish and non~Jowish or-
ganizations in cducating for Pcoce end Socinl Bettermont; to extond through
locel menbers Jewish hospitality to students and to sponsor Youth Activities;
to crocte in Braille a Jowish librery for the Jowish blind of thc world; to
assist in the religious and socicl adjustuont of new Amcricons, cooperating
with oxisting agoncicse YMiss Jone Evens is Exccutive Dircctor of the HNationel
Federation of Temple Sistorhoods, which meintains headquartors in the Merchants
Building, Cincinnetielt

The Mississippi Sistorhoods who have affiliated with the National Federa-
tion and the dctes of affiliction: Canton (1930); Clarksdale (1934); Cleveland

(1927); Columbus (1927); Corinth (1935); Drew and Ruleville (1927); Greonville
(1920); Grecnwood (1919); Hatticsburg (1930); Jackson (1917); Leoxington (1922);
Leurcl (1926); Moridian (1914); latchoz (1914); Riversido (1927); Vicksburg (157

Minutcs of tho Mississippi Federation of Templc Sistorhoods, 1924--, 1
vols, kept by Mrse A. . Schwertz, honorary life-prcsident, Tombigoc and Se
Congross Stse, Jacksone

1. This historical skotch of the Na- hoods is based loargely on informetio:
tional Federation of Temple Sistor= furnishcd by Yiss Evanse
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Canton Sisterhood, orgenized 1889: Temple Sisterhood Minutes, 1910--,

1 vol., kept by Miss Bertha Loeb, 141 E. Peace St.

Clarksdale Sisterhood, orgenized 1934: Minutes of Temple Sisterhood,
1935-~, 1 vol., kept by Mrse. Harry Laebens, secretary.

Cleveland Sisterhood, orgenized 1920: Adath Israel Temple Sisterhood,
Minutes, 1927=-, 1 vol., kept by Mrse. We E. Kent, president.

Columbus Sisterhood, organized 1927: Minutes of Temple Sisterhood,
1932~=, 6 vols., kept by Mrs, iorris L. Roscnzweig, 501 S. Sccond St.

Northeast Mississippi Sisterhood (members from thirteen north Mississippi
towns), orgenized 1936: Sisterhood Reocords, 1938--, 1 vols, includes minutes,
members, financial rocords, kept by Mrs. iMerion Poltz, 506 N. Robins St.,
Tupelo; Sundey School Records, 1938--, 1 vol., kept by Mrs. Scl Weiner, 502
Neo Robins Ste., Tupelos

Drew=Ruleville Sisterhood, orgenized 1915: Secretary's Ledger, 1915--,
1 vol., contains minutes and members, kept by Mrs. He. Arst, secretary, Drews

Greenville Sisterhood, organized 1920: Sisterhood Minutes, 1929--, 1 vol.,
kept by the secretary, Mrs. Rosa L. M. Raphael, 910 Arnold Ave.

Greenwood Temple Sisterhood, organized 1898: Sisterhood Minutes, 1931=-,
2 volse, and Sisterhood Treasurer!'s Book, 1919~-~, 1 vol., both kept by Mrs.
Mex Levitt, 509 W. Washington St.

Hattiesburg Sisterhood, organized 1914: Sisterhood Minutes, 1914 --,
1 vol., kept by Mrs. Hermen Katz, secretary, at her home, W. Pine St.

Jackson Sisterhood, organized 1900: No records kept,

Lexington Sisterhood (Julia Lewis Sisterhood) organized 1910: Sisterhood
Minute Book, 1927--, 1 vol., kept by irs. Hermen Flowers, secrctary, at her
home.

Leurel Sisterhood, organized 1915: Temple Sistorhood Minutes, 1932 ==,
1 vol., kept at the templec by Hannah Veiss, secretary.

Moridien Sisterhood, organized 1906: Minutes of Temple Sisterhood, 1938--,
3 vols., kept by irs. Louis Rothenberg, at her home, 2103 Fourtecnth St.

Netchez Sisterhood, orgenized 1914: Minutes, 1936--, 1 vol., kept by Mrs.
Meyer He Marx, 311 Jefferson Ste

Riverside Sisterhood (Rosedale and vieinity), organizod 1926: Minutes,
1926-~, 1 vol., kept by Mrs. Samuel Baskin, Beulah.

Vicksburg Sistorhood, orgenized 1903: Iinutes, 1940--, 1 vol., kept by
Mrs. L. Re. Fischel, 2310 Drummond St.; Financial Records, 1940--, 1l vol., kopt
by Mrs. Leon Fischel, Cherry Ste.
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3, HADASSAH, The Women's Zionist Orgenization of Americe,

There arc threc chaptors of Hodassah in Mississippi, all of thom orgon-
ized in 1939. Theso are at Claerksdale, (Entry 19) Hattiosburg, (Entry 25)
and Jackson (Entry 10). Thero has boen no attempt, as yet, to croate a State
orgonization; tho throe choptors being affiliated diroctly with tho notional
Hadaessah, with hetdquarters ot 1860 Broadway, New York, N. Y

Hedassoh was founded in 1912 by Miss Henriotte Szolde The aim was to
assist in securing and meintaining o homo for the Jewish people in Palostince
Its initial program wos to sond two public health nurses into Pelestine to
holp alleviato some of the suffering ond the results of physical backwordness
which thon obtoined in the Holy Lands As the war advoncod, and conditions
in Palestine became worse, o5 refugoes stroamed into the country, Hadasstch's
progrom of public health expandod. Hodassah opened hospitals, instituted
sanitation work, foumded infant welfare stations, initiated o school hygione
servico, orgenized anti-moleria coempeigns ond wogod o continuous fight against
trochome, the frightful oye disocase which is the scourge of the Neer Eoste
Aftor the war, 2ll thosc sorvices woro expanded. Hadassah openoed the first
tuborculosis hospital in Palestine at Safeds In less thon ten years aftor the
Great War, the orgonization had brought to Palestine & complete health service
basod on the latest proventive and curative mndical techniques procticed in
the United Stotos. Hadessah hos assisted in transforring to Pealestino youth-
ful Jewish rofugocs, as the scle American ageney for Youth Aliyah (Youth Migra=
tion) in this countrye. In five cnd o half yoars, o little less thon six thou-
sand children have beon trensforred from Eastern and Contral Europe and sottled
in Palestine's agricultural colonies and trade schools under the care of the
Youth Aliyah movement. Hadossah guarcntecs thesc young peoplc mointenence
and education throughout o two-yeor period of treininge At tho conclusion of
the period of training with its woll-roundod program of practical work and vo-
cotional and acodomic studies, the Youth Aliych child is fully equipped to
entor the life of Jowish Palestince

Clarksdale Chapter, organized 1939: Minutos, 1939--, 1 vol., kopt by the
secrotary-treasurcrs, Mrs. Morris Binder, 314 Cypress Ste

Jackson Chapter, orgsnized 1939: Minutos, 1939--, 1 vol., kopt by tho
recording secretory, Mrs. lax Borman, Bdwerds Hotel; Mombers, Officers,
Committces, 1939--, 1 vol., kept by corrosponding secrotary, Mrs. Sam Vitoff,
755 Lorrainc Ste; Troasurcr's Report, 1939--, 1 vol., kopt by the treasurer,
Mrse. Albert M. Rosenfield, Hawthorne Drive.

Hottiesburg Chaptor, orgenizoed 1939: Minutes, 1939--, 1 vol., kept by
the scerotary, Mrs. Arthur Brodey, in her houmoe, Second AVC.

4, MISSISSIPPI FEDERATION OF TEMPLE YOUTH, 1940--.

Orgenized Fobruary 1lth, 1940, in Vicksburg, by representatives of tho
Vicksburg, Groecnweod, Jackson and Clarksdale youth organizationse Joo Hyem,
president of tho Greonwood Young Peoples' Losgue, presided, tnd oppointed
Edith Tonkel, president of the Clerksdalc Tomple of Youth Looguo, &8s temporary
socrotary. The first mecting aftor orgenization was at Jockson, Sunday,

April 21st, 1940. Approximately 150 membors of Temple Youth Groups in HMiss=
issippi mot in this first ALnnucl Convention. 4 Constitution, drafted by tho
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Clarksdale Lecgue, was adopted, and the following officers were clcected:

Seul Fricd, president, Vicksburgs Sylvia Boskind, vice-presideont, Clarksdalos
Maud Rosenbaun, secrctory-trecsurcr, Meridicne. The convention was held at the
Hoidolberg Hotel, Jewish Youth groups reprosented werc: Clerksd:le, Greenville,
Groenwood, Joackson, Laurel, Hattiesburg, leridian and Vicksburga

Constitution of Mississippi Federction of Temple Youth, 1940, 2 pp.,
typwritten, copy in posscssion of cach loczl scerctarye The copy in posscss=
jon of Jack Millstein,atThe Parisian, Jackson, is the originala

Clarksdele Temple Youth League, orgenized 1939: Minutes, 1939--, 1 vol.,
kept by secretary, Edith Bloom; Finencial Records, 1939--, 1 vol., kept by
treasurer, lavid Califf,

Greenville Young Men's Hebrew Association, orgenized 18%0s Minutes, 1926--,
1 vol., kept by secretary, Bernie Goodmens

58~~,
02 Be

Greenwood Young Jewish People's League, organiged 1938: 1inutes, il
1 vol., including constitution &nd members, kept by Mary Louise Rogers, 3
Front Ste.

Jackson Temple League, or-~anized 1939: Minutes of Club Mcetings, 1939-=-,
1 vol., end Minutes of Meetings of Board of Trustecs, 1939--, 1 vol., both
kept by secretary, Pearl Cohen, 730 Bust Fortification Ste.; Finencizl Records,
1939--, 1 vol., kept by trecsurcr, Bernicc Brod, at Millstein's Inc., Capitol
St.; Correspondence and Miscellincous Rocords, 1939--, 1 file box, kept by
president, Jack Millstein, at Tho arision, Capitol Ste

Laurel-Hettiosburg Jewish Youth Organizetion orsunized 1940: MNinutes
[ &) O ’ € ’
1940--, 1 vol., kept by sccrctery Stunley Cohen, at his home, Herdy St.,
Hettiesburg.

Meridian Youth Group, organized 1939: Minutcs, 1939--, 1 vol., &nd cor=-
rospondence, 1939--, 1 folder, both kept by secrectury, Margic Goldin, 1618
26th Avoe; Financiel Rccords, 1939--, 1 volas, kcpt by Marvin. Fink, 2515 6th St.;
Miscellincous Folder, 1939--, 1 folder, contuius corrospondence and somc finan-
cial records portuining to nationul, Jtete, end loct.l Fedcrution, kopt by
president, Maud Roscnbaun, 2100 23rd AvVee

Vicksburg Junior Congregttion, orgenized 1937: Minute Book, 1937=~,
1 vol., and Cash Book, 1937=-, 1 vol., both kept by the gecretary=traisurcr,
Betty Emily Hirsch, at her home, 2222 Cherry Ste

5., *ORTEODOX CONGLIGATION, c.1800-c.1910, Union St., MNetchcz, Adams County

Just when Orthodox services were first in Netchoz is not lnown.
There wore Jows here certainly as c:irly as 1798 end probebly earliers Ser=
vices were likely held by the bepinning of the ninetecnth century, and there
is tradition of on carly’Cchtcry on the south-cnd of Cenal Ste At onc time
services were conducted in an improvised synagogue over & store on thc north
sidec of Frenklin St., between Union end Ronkin Sts., the excet location not
now lmown. Bv the 1880's the congregation wi.s holding services over lio. 3
Enginc House of the Natchez Fire Depcrtment on Union St. between ¥ain tnd
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Franklins Stse About 1910, due to rcmovil of mombers =nd the growth of Re=

- form Judaism, thc Orthodox congregation became inactive. If thersc wes o resi-

dent rcbbi, his name is not now knovme.

Scc: Edith Wyatt llooro, "Tomple B'nai Isruel," Natchez, 1940, 6 ppe in
possession of the author, Natchcz.

6. CONGREGATION B'NAI ISRAEL, (Children of Isrccl), 1840--, Commerce aond
Weshington Sts., Natchcz, Adams County.

Orgenized in 1840. In thet yoar o cemotery was purchascd, which now
occupies a narrow, walled strip in the contral portion of the city cemeterye.
Locetion of first scrvices not knowne In 1867, & brick templc, dedicated 1872,
wes crected on Commercc and Woeshington Stse It burncd in 1904. On July 1lst.,
1904 the corner-stone was luid for the present synagogue on the stme site,
tnd the following year, kicrch 25th, it wus dedicateds The crchitecture is clas-
sic, with round dome, and colored gluss windowse B'nai Isruel Congregation
joined the Union of American Hebrew Congrcgitions, October 5th, 1873« Ezra
Lodgo, Nos 134, B'nei B'rith was organized in 1870 (See Entry 1)s A Tomple
Sisterhood was organized in 1914, which «ffiliated with the National Federo=-
tion of Temple Sistorhoods in 1914 (Sce Entry 2). There werc fifty-four con-
tributing mombers from Natchez in the congregation in 1939, in addition, there
are some thirty-five meibers living in the nearby tovms of Ferriday (Le.) and
Lorman, Bude, ond Faycttos First settlcd rabbi unknown. Prosent rabbi is
Meyer Ho Merxe

See: Bdith Wratt Moorc, "Temple B'nai Isrcel," liatchez, 1940, 6 pps,
in possession of the cuthor, Hutchez.

Congrogotional Minutes, 1878--, 3 vols., kept by lirse lMiriam Eiller,
517 Madison Ste.; Register, 1911-23, 1938--, 2t vols., includcs mirriages, nom-
bers, deuths, kept ut the toiple, by Rebbi Marx; Finencicl Reeords, 1909-31,
4 vols., also kept by Rubbi Meyer H. lMarx; Deceds: Deecd Book 00, pe 603, in
office of chancery clerk of Adems County, Hatchcze

7o  CONGREGATION AHSHEE CHZSED, (Men of Kindness), 1841--, 1209 Cherry St.,
Vicksburg, YWerren County.

Orgonized in 1841, From the organizetion dutc until 186€, scrvicos wero
hcld in verious homces cnd in & building on Levee St., owned by one of the mem-
bers, Be Yoste. In 1868, aftor sufficiont funds hod been roised to build a
synagoguc the cornerstonc of thc present building wes leid, md & temple built,
being dedicated uy 16th, &t 1209 Chorry Ste In that ycar, the first settled
rebbi, Bornard Hirold Gotthelf, took chirge of the congrogetions In 1893,
the original building wes romodeleds It is the presont btuilding, of briek con-
struction, Gothic architccturc, with Sunday Schonl rooms and a study in the
basements Anshe Chescd Congregation beeniie o member of the Union of Amcrican
Hebrew Congregetions, April 25th, 1874. The congregotion possesses five scrnlls
of the Torah, the oldest of which is snid to be at lcast two centurics olde
Mississippi Lodge, of B'nai Btrith, was boegun in 1867 (Sce Entry 1), 4 Sister-
hood orgonized in October 1903, beeame affilicted with the National Federction
of Templec Sisterhoods in 1913 (Scc Entry 2)e. A Junior Conrrcgatiog woas organie
zed in 1937 (Sce Entry 4). Also in 1937 was orgenized the Jewish Vielfore Fed-




Archives of Orgenizations and Congreguations

Ligg s

(7-8)

eretions Dre Stanley Rosenbeum Brav, is tho presont rabbi. Tho tomplc has

‘its own cemotery, locetod ncar the Nationel Militury Park, Clay Stroct Exton-

sions There wero 118 contributing members listed in 1939. A one-story stucco
rasidence for tho robbi wus obtained in 1937, at 3207 Drummond Ste

Seoc: Stunley Re Bruv, Jowish Fumily Solidurity, Myth or Fact?, Vicksburg,
Nogules Press, 1940, 130 ppe T
He Po Chapmen tnd Je Fo Bottoile, Vicksburg and the Yezoo Delte,
Vicksburg, 1895, 105-108. Ton T e

Minuto Book, 1930--, 1 vol., kept by Som Albrocht, Secrotury, &t his home,
1405 HMulberry Ste; Confirmetion end Morricge Records, 1895--, 3 vols., (incom=-
plcte) kept by Rabbi Stenloy R. Brav, in his study, et the templo; Financial
Records, 1927--, 1 vol., kopt by Sum Albrecht, in his home, 1405 Mulborry Ste;
Records of the Jewish Welfurce Federation, 1937--, 1 bundle, includes corros=
pondencs, minutes, snd miscellaneous pupers, kept by Dr. Brav in his study at
the synegoguscs Rocord Rebbi Sol L. Kory Libriry, 1938--, 1 vol., showing
donations, purchuses, expenditurcs, kopt by Dre Brav in his study. Doods:
Book EE, ppe 662-063; Book FF, ppe 178-179 in office of the Chancery Clerk, of
Werren County, Vicksburg. Incorporctions: Scoretury of Stute, Jackson, Roe=
ord of Incorporations, Book 1, p. 169; L. M. 1871, 551,

8. CONGREGATION B'NAI ISRAEL (Childron of Israsl), 1845--, Second Avc.,
end Bighth Ste M., Columbus, Lowndus Countye

Orgsnized 1845. Gorman Jows cnd Jows from Alscce had come to Columbus os
early os 1836. First sorvices wore held in privete homes and leter in the
socond story of the O0dd Fellow's Building on the corner of 2nd Avee., Ne &nd
8th St. A comotury wus bought in 1850. In 1908, the old Methodist Church on
Seccond Avce, Ne wos purchasod end remodeled. For many yo&rs services wore con-
ducted by leymone First settled clorgymon was Rabbi Joscph Horz, 1881~1911,
The tomple is & Gethic building constructed of brick cnd stono with tower at
front, steined gluss windows tnd welnut pows. Present clergyman, Robbi Bernard
Adlor, o notive of Fuerth, Germany, 603 Sccend Ste, Se. The congregetion has
not joined the Union of Amoricen Hobrew Congrogitionse The Columbus Tomple
Sistorhood wes orgonized in 1927 (see Entry 2); members arc from Columbus,
Starkville, West Point, Macon, and Aberdecn. Orgonization of Jouchim Lodgo,
B'nai B'rith, wos begun in Oct. 1871 and comploted in 1872; the nume huas since
been chenged tc Joseph Herz Lodge (soe Entry 1) &nd, like the Sistoerhood, in=
cludes members from towns other thon Columbuse

Seo: Dr. We L. Lipscomb, History of Cclumbus, Press of Disputeh Printing
Coe, 1909, Birminghem, Alie, ppe 113-114.

Minutes, 1850--, 3 vols.; Registor, 1870--, 2 vels., (centaining list of
confirmetions snd members) all kept by the scerctery-tretsurer, Isidor Rubel,
ot his home, 802 N. Second Aves; Fintncicl Records, 1879--, 1 vol.; Sundeay
Schocl Reccrds, 1879--, 1 vol. (contcining mombors ¢nd finances), kopt by Soc-
rotary-rocsurer, Morris Lee Rosenzweig, in the church basement; Decds: Deed
Book 30, pe 295, (cemetery); Book 89, p. 874, in offico of the chancory clerk
of Lowndes County, Columbuse.
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9, CONGREGATION GEMILUTH CHASSED (Dccds of Charity), 1859--, Church St.,
Port Gibson, Claiborne Countys.

Organized in 1859, some of the organizers removing herc from Grond Gulf,
where Jewish settlers hoed purchased a cemctery. (Sce pe 8)e First services werc
held in the old 0dd Fellow's Iinll on Fuir Ste The first and prescnt synagogue
wes crected on Church St., in 1892. It is o building of mixed architecturc,
stained-glass windows with rounded trensoms, and o Moorish-typo dome ovaor the
front cntrance. At the dedication of the tomple, cn ancient silver crovm,
breestplate, and scopter for the Torah were given by Hrsé Isador Newmen, as a
memorial to her parents, Mr. and Mrs. Louis Keifer. The first settled rabbi,
we.s Rabbi Mischnik, en Austrian; whose tenure and first naeme are not now known.
A cemetery was purchased in 1871 on Mergeral St. Gemiluth Chessed joined the
Union of Americen Hebrew Congregations, November 256th, 1874, Eleven contribut-
ing members were reported in 1939, The congregation has no rabbi at present,
services being held by laymen, chiefly in recent years by Kerl Vieils

Record Rook, 1859-69, 1 vol., list of members, and financial record, kept
by Mrse. Samuel Weil, at her home, 904 Vialnut Ste; Iist of liembers, 1935--, 1
vol., kept by Mrs. B. H. Levy; Deeds: Land Deed Record, Book II, pe 510 (Ceme-
tery)s; Book 3-A, pe 326; Book YY, ps 583, in office of the chencery clerk of
Claiborne County, Port Gibsons Incorporations: L. M., 1870, 444-445,

10. CONGREGATION BETH ISRAEL (House of Isracl), 186l--, Vioodrow Wilson
Ave., Jackson, Hinds County.

Orgenized 1861s The first building, a frame structure, stood somewhat
south of the corner of S. Stete and South Sts., and wes burned in 1863 by
Federal troops et tho capturc of Jackson. A new building, one-story with
reiscd besement, of brick and stone construction was built end dedicated in,
1874 at the corner of S. State and South Stse It was repaired and renovated
soveral times. At tho time of its sale and dismantling, in 1940, it was tho
oldest religious edificc in Joacksone. In 1940, the congrepation bought from
the Statc of Mississippi o temple site on Vioodrow Wilson Ave. and crocted
its prescnt buildinge A comctery, in use toduy, bounded by N. Stetc, Ne Pros-
ident, Pinchurst, and Vicbster Gts.wes purchused in 1860.1 First settled
rubbi unlnown, but among the oarlicst ribbis wore Dr. Se. (?) Mcyor and Dra
Wochmen Je Bonsone From time to time, luy mombers have conductod the scrvices,
among, them being Isidore Strauss, Laron Lehwan, ond Loz Kahne Present Rebbi,
Meyor Lovitt, 1929--. Therc cre 72 memberse Monesseh Lodge, B'nai B'rith,
wes organized in 1873 (Sce Entry 1)e A Temple Sisterhood wis organized 1900
and affilicted with the Netional Fedoration of Templo 3isterhoods in 1917
(Sec Entry 2)e A Jockson Yemple Lecgue (Youth group) wts organized Jonuery
1st., 1939. (Scec Entry 4)e

Sces Kato M. Power, "A History of thc Jewish Congregation in Jackson,"
in Jackson Daily News, June 7th., 1936
Frances DuffgrﬂﬁfIEESric Temple Here Yields to Growth™, in Jackson
eily News, May 12th, 1940.

1. This is the dote on thc deed rccorded in office of the chencery clerk of
Hinds County ot Raymond, Book 28, pe %4, but the Jewish Encyclopcdia also
specks of on 1854 cemotery (sce page 3 and footnote 1) of which thoro is

now no recordes
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Congregationul Minutes, 1908--, 2 vols.; Financial Records, 1925=-, 1

" vole; Rocords of Members and Doaths, 1928--, 1 vol., 811 preceding records

kept by the secretary, Julius Ee. Hotry, ¢t his office, S. Stoate and Pearl Stsey
Deeds: Deood Record, Book 30, p. 378; Book 28, pe 4, in office of tho chancery
clerk of Hinds County, Ruymond; Deed Record, Bock 12, p. 438; Book 333, p. 211,
in office of chuncery clerk of Hinds County, Jackson; L. Ms, House Bill 761,
Session 1940; Incorporation: Secretury of State, Jackson, Record of Incorpo-
rotions, Book 1, pe 142,

11, CONGREGATION BETH ISRAEL, (House of Israel), 1868--, 1lth St. and
24th Ave., Moridicn, Lauderdale Ccunty.

Orgtnized in 1868, Tho congregction worshipped in & room on the sccond
floor over Carney's grocery store, ot the ccrner of 6th St. and 22nd Ave.,
which wes sold in 1904. Twe years lateor tho present building was erccted, on
11th St. and 24th Ave. ¢nd in that year dedicctede It is modeled aftor the
Parthenon, and is considored one of the most complete temples in the scuthe
The temple hes two scrells of the Torah, one covered with crimson velvet for
the usual services, one, covered with whito satin, for the groator fetstse
The first sottled rabbi, wos Rebbi Dave Borgmen, coming to Beth Isrcel soon
after its orgonization cnd remaining here until 1874, On August 27th of that
year, the congregation jcinod the Union of American Hebrew Congregationse
Tomple services follow the Unicn Prayer-Book., Asaph Lodgo, B'nai B'rith, was
organized in 1877 (see Entry 1). In the same ycar the Hebrow Young Men's
Litorary end Droamatic Association, was incorporated, "for the purpose of mu=
tucl improvement in the arts cnd sciencos." This club is not now active ond
none of its rocords, except of its inccrperation, have been founde A Sister=-
hood orgenized in 1906, affiliated with tho National Foderation of Templo Sis-
terhoods in 1914 (sce Entry 2). In 1939, the Youth Group of Temple Both Isracl
was orgoenized (soc Entry 4). tThere werc 108 contributing members listed in the
congrogation in 1939, Rabbi Williem Ackeorman, the present rcbbi, has served
the congregotion since 1924. Mombors of Congregotion Both Isracl join with
those of Congregotion Ohel Jacob (Entry 15) in the work of Jowish auxiliory
organizationse.

Minute Books, 1926--, 2 vols., kept by William Opponhoim; Confirmotion
and Mombors, 1924--, 1 vole.; Sunday Schcol Rocords, 1924--, 1 vecl., both kept
by Rebbi William Ackermen, in his home, 1112 24th Aves.; Financicl Records,
1935-~, 3 vcls., kept by Louis Rothenberg, 2103 Fourtsenth St.; Incorpors-
tion: Secretary of State, Jackson, Record of Incorporaticns, Book 1, pp. 341-
342 (Young Men's Literary and Dromatic Ass.); Book 12, p. 345; Deeds: Doods
Book Y, pe 227; Book 58, ps 620; Book 69, ppe 293-95; Book 74, p. 96; Book 98,
Pe 298, in office of choncory clerk of Lauderdale County, Moridian.

12. CONGREGATION B'NAI ISRAEL (Children of Isrcel), 1877--, Academy ond
Liberty Sts., Canton, Madison Countye

Orgonized in 1877, in which yoor the prsesent synagogue was crected, on
Acedemy and Liberty Stse. A cometery had been purchased by Cunton Jews in
1870, 'The templc is & simple froamo building. In 1878, o scvere yellow fover
epidemic causcd & lapse in sorvicese The first settlod rabbi was Rebbi Joscph
Sophor, 1879-80. In chargo of B'nei Isrzel Congregaticn today is Rabbi Mex
Lowinthal. There are thirty-five members. The congrogation has not joined the
Union of Americen Hebrow Congregations, clthough the Hebrew Union Prayer-Book
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is used for services. A Sisterhood, organized in 1889, joined the National
Federation of Temple Sisterhoods in 1930 (dee Entry 2). dJudith Lodge, B'nai
B'rith orgenized 1868, was incorporated 1871, but has been inactive since 1934
(Entry 1).

See: Mrs. Pauline Michel, "History of Temple B'nai Israel", in Madison
County Herald, lMarch 23rd, 1934.

Minute Books, 1910--, 1 vol., in care of Rabbi Mex Lewinthal; Temple Sister=
hood, 1910--, 1 vol., and Record of the Cemetéry Association, 1910--, 1 vols,
both kept by Miss Bertha Loeb, 141 E. Peace St.; Deed: Deeds, Book U, pe 120
(cemetdry); Book LL, pe 134 (synagogue), in office of chancery clerk of Madison
County, Cantone Incorporations: Secretary of State, Jackson, Record of In-
corporations, Book 1, pp. 305-06,

13. CONGREGATION OHAVEH SCHOLEM (Lovers of Peace), c.1870-c.1910,
B aldwin St. and Illinois Central Railroad, Summit, Pike County.

Organized c.1870, by which time & sizeable Jowish community had grown up
in Summite A frame temple was orected soon after organization on the corner
of Baldwin Ste and the Illinois Central Railroad. This building wes destroyed
by a tornado in May 1924, although tho congrogetion had already becomc inac=
tive some yours bofores In the 1890's there were twonty femilies connected with
the temples Serviges were conducted «t various times by Rabbi Louis Myers, who
left Summit in the 1890's and later by Louis Asronson, laymcn of Summit. Oc=-
casional services were &lso held by visiting rabbis, notably Dr. Hermun Bien,
Vicksburg.

No records found. Rocord of deed destroyed in courthouse fire, 1882,

14, *CONGREGATION BETH ISRAEL (House of Isracl), 1878-c. 1910, Main St.,
Woodville, Wilkinson Countys

Organized 1878, an outgrowth of the Woodvillc Hebrew Educationul Associ=-
ation estublished 1878 Therc had been & Jowish cometery in Woodville since
1849 (sec pe 3), and services since the 1850's. First services were orthodox
but there was an increasing reform element in the congregation. A synagogue
was erocctod, soon after orgenization, on Natchez St. This building wes de-
stroyed by fire in Fobruary, 1896, &nd & cornerstone for & now onc on tho sume
site laid July 30th, 1896, The only settlod ruobbis whose némes ure now knovm
ars Rabbis Moax Moses cnd Henry Cohon, the lattor serving the congregation in
the eurly twentieth century. Due to removuls, the congrogation declinede. Tho
building was sold and moved to Mxin St., where it wes uscd, first as a school,
then as a thoatere It burncd in tho 1930's.

Sco: Anonymous, "The Jowish Synagogue," Woodville Republican, July 19th,
1924.

Deceds: Deed Record, Book P, ps 591 (cometery); Lend Rocord, Book AA, pe
480; Book ZZ, pe 287 (addition to cemetery), in office of the chancery clerk,
Wilkinson County, Woodville.
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15. CONGREGATION OHEL J.COB (Proying Room of Jacob), 1880--, 2515 6th St.,
Meridian, Laudordalc Countye :

Orgenized 1880 with Rabbi Samuel Goldstein in charge. First services wore
held in the Pythian Hall, 22nd Ave. and 9th St., and in the 0dd Fellow's Hall,
23rd ivos ond Tth Ste Sorvices today are held in the rosidence of lire Louis
Davidson, 2515 6th Ste Both Minhog Sephardim ond reform rites are useds A
perpetual light is kept burning over tho two scrolls of the Torah in the tom=
plce The presont rabbi is Hirch Zissmon, 28th ive. and 16th Ste Tho congre-
gation owns & comotery, noxt to that of Temple Beth Israel (Entry 11) on
Morion Roode Members of Congregation Ohel Jacob join with those of Congrego-
tion Beth Isracl (Entry 11) in the work of Jewish auxiliary organizotionse

Congregation Minutes, 1935--, 1 vol., kopt ot 629 25th Ave.,by sccretary,
Saul Feinstein; Finonciol Records, 1930--, 1 volas, kept by treasurer, ; %
Louis Goldin, ot Meridion Hidc ond Fur Co., 26th Avce

16, HEBREW UNION CONGREGATION, 1880-~, Main and Hinds Sts., Greenville,
Toshington Countys

Orgonized 1880. As early as 1869, there werc o number of Jowish families
here, sorved until 1879 by Rabbi Charles Rowitzor of Momphis, who also taught
o Gormen=-English school in Greonville, omd this small congregation was known
os Btnoi Isracle In 1873, he confirmed fivo personse This congregation was
wookencd by the yellow fever epidemic in 1878+ Formnl orgonization as the
Hobrow Union Congregation finally took place in 1880, Dr. Joscph Bogen was
the first settled rabbi, (1881~1901)¢ Soon thercafter o lot and church build=
ing on the corner of Main and Hinds Stse, wore purchasede The building was
enlarged and remodeled in 1884, and in 1900 was sold ond removed, to moke room
for thc presont temple, erected on the same sitoe This is o brick ond stone
structurc, of Grecian architecturc with memorial windows, which was dedicated
on October 26-27, 1906e It was ropaired and redccorated after o Mississippi
river flood in 1927 and again in 1939, The presont Ark and one of the three
Torahs have boen in usc since 1882e The congrogation have their ovm cemetery,
located on State Highway 1, adjoining the Greenville city cometerye The Hebrew
Union Congregotion becomo o membor of the Union of Americon Hebrew Congrego-
tions, January 5th, 1903 A Young Men's Hebrew Association was nrganized in
1890, being first called the Harmony Club, later thé Olympic Clube It is now @
membor of the Mississippi Federation of Temple Youth ( see Entry 4), Thore were
130 contributing members reported in the Congregation in 1940. The prosent
robbi is Rabbi Samuel A. Robinowitze Deborah Lodge, Noe 161, of B'nai B!rith
was orgenized in 1895 (see Entry 1)s Thc Hebrew Union Temple Sisterhood was
orgonizod in 1920, and offiliatod with the National Foderation of Templc Sistor=
hoods tho same yoar (Entry 2)s {n carlier womon's group, the Hebrew Ladies'
Home Association had been incorporated in 1890

Sco: Nathon Goldstoin, "Golden Jubileo of the Hobrew Union Temple,"
Daily Domocrat, dJone 12th, 1931, Greonvilloes

Minutce Books, 1880-1937, 5 volse, kopt by Maurice Bergman, president, in
voult in his officc, Poplaer Ste; 1937--, 1 vole, kopt by Herman Soloman, secre-
tary, ot his homo 705 Fairview Avoe; Co
Doaths, 19265--, 1 vol.; Marricges, 1925=~,

nfirmation Rocords, 1922-=, 1 vole;
1 vol.; Mombers, 1880-=, 3 volss kept
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Dby Robbi Se Ae Rebinowitz; Financial Records, 1880--, 3 vols., kopt by Isador
Roman; Dceds: Docd Book M2, pe 582; Book N2, pe 98; Book 02, pe 21; Book Q2,
pe 297; Book L2, pe 4773 Book 103, ps 29, (new cemetery property), in offico
of choncory clork of Woshingbon County, Greenvillo; Incorporations: Sccre-
tary of State, Jackson, Book 1, ppe. 469-71; Book 4, ppe 268-69 (Hobrow Ladics!
Home JiSSe )o

17 CONGREGATION AHAVATE RAYIM (Beloved Fricndship), 1893--, Market and
Goorge Sts., Grecmwood, Lcflore Countye

Orgonizod in 1893, although orthodox sorvices were held in privatc homes
ot least as early as 1891. From organization until 1923, services were held
in the Mosonic Halle The first sobttled rabbi was Dave Schapperstein, 1914-23.
A synogogue, still in use, wos erccted in 1922, end dedicated Jenuary, 1923e
It is a brick structure of Gothic architecturc. There arc four large columms
ot the front of the building. A Lodies!' iuxiliary was orgonized Jane 14th,
1908. Present rabbi, is Philip Danzigere Thirty-five mcmbors worc reported in
1940 Therc arc throe Torahs, onc brought from Europe by the father of Joke
and Abe Kantor, the two lattor of whom geve it to the synagogues; onc was given
by Mre and Mrse Iko Golman, on their silver-wedding anniversary; oand a third
was bought by the congrogotions

Minutos, 1914--, 4 vols., include financial records, kept ot the synogogue
by Be Gorlove; Ladies! Auxiliary Minute Book, 1921-=, 1 vols; Financial Records,
1908=--,2 vols., ond List of Members, 1933--, 1 vol., both kept by lirse Harry
Goldberg, 805 Dewey Ste; Decds: Dood Book 49, pe 422; Book 55, pe 544, in
office of chancery clerk of Leflorc County, Groonwood e

18. CONGREGATION B'NAI SHOLOM (Children of Poaco), 1894=-, Chickasaw and
Se Church Sts., Brookhaven, Lincoln Countye

Orgenized 1894 Tho organization of the tomple wos aided by Rabbi Isadore
Lowenthal, of Nashville, Temne Howcver, Jows had sottled here as early as 1852
engaging in the mercontile businesse First sorvices were held in private homes,
and elsewhere, by Rabbi Solomon Lowenthale A cemctery, adjoining the city com-
etery, was obtained in 186l. Tho presont temple, was erectod in 1896 and ded=
icated on May 27th of that year. It is of frame, Gothic architecture with
stained glass windows, o stoople, but no bclle There has never been o rosident
robbi. The congregation of 26 members is sorved from Natchez by Rabbi Meyer He
Marx, who holds services twice oach monthe The congregation has not joined the
Union of Amorican Hebrow Congregotionse Abram Lodge, Btnai Bfrith, was orgon-
ized in 1898 (Entry 1), but is now inactives

Temple Minutes, 1927-=-, 1 vole; Roll of lembers, 1939--, 1 vole, ond
Finoneial Records, 1939--, 1 vol., all kept by Mrse Eli Buckman, in her home,
Se Jackson Ste; Decds: Land Deeds Conveyance, Book 12, pps 299-300, Deeds,
Book 12, pe 343 (cometery); Vole 11, pe 45, in office of chancery clerk of
Lincoln County, Brookhavene

19, CONGREGATION BETH ISRAEL (House of Isracl), 1896--, Catelpo and
Choctaw Stse, Clarksdalc, Coahoma Countye

Orgonized in 1896, ond servicos conducted in various homes, by the lay
momberse In 1910, the Jowish Ledies' Ald Society was organized for helping
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needy Jewish personss In 1910 also, the first synagogue wes erected on Delta
"Ave. This building is now being used as a B'nal B'rith Homee The present
building, of Moorish design, was built and dedicated in 1929+ It is of brick
construction, with two domes and memorial windowse The Reve M. Lupchansky
served the congregation from 1907 to 1912 and was succceded by the Reve Ae He
Freymen, 1912-32. Dolta Lodgc, B'mai Bfrith was organizod Jonuary 2nd, 1910;
until 1927, the neme was Clarksdalo Lodge (gee Entry 1). Rabbi Jorome Gerson
Tolochko, was the first rcsident rabbi, 1932-40. Both Israel has o membership of
14 families and Sunday School cnrollment of 147 students, An interesting fact
rogarding this tomplo is that zll threo denominations of the Jowish faith: Tho
orthodox, the gonscrvative, tho roformeod, find froc expression undor onc roofe
Of the fivo scrolls of tho Torah bolonging to tho temple, all save the first,
which was purchasod in 1905 by thc congregation, wore gifts of individual mame
bors or groups in the congrogations Orthodox services arc conducted according
to Minhog Ashkonaz rites, whilc the rcformed sorvicos usc tho stendard reformed
scrvices as sct forth by tho Central Conforcnec of Amoricon Rabbise Tho con-
grogation has not joined the Union of Amorican Hobrew Congrogationss A Sister=-
hood orgemizod in 1934, joinocd the Notional Fodoration of Templo Sistorhoods
the samo yoar, (scc Entry 2)s Prosont rabbi: G J. Feigon, 1940--,

In 1938, thc Mississippi Institute of Jowish and Cognatc Studics wos organe
izod ond incorporated as o part of Beth Isracl's oducational system, tho objoct
of which was to train Sunday School toachers, as woll as to impart information
of a rcligious naturc to thosc who dosirc ite Tho dogroo of Bacholor of Hebrew
History and Litoraturc is conferrocde It is plaxmed also to issuc the additional
dogroe of Bachclor of Comparative Religions Tho variecd curriculum of the Insti=
tutc has boen taught by not only Rabbi Tolochko as Dean but by & faculty of non-
Jows, including Protostont, Roman Cotholic, and Episcopel clergymene A mimco=
graphed velume of loctures givon at the Institutc was issucd in 1939 (scc Biblio-
grophy, pe 33)s A Clarksdalc Tomplc Youth Loaguc was organizod Jeanuary l2th,
1939 (sce Entry 4)e A chapter of Hndassah, national woman's Zionist organizo=
tion, was'also orgarized in.1939 (sce Entry 3).

Scc: Rabbi Je Gerson Tolochko, Both-Isracl Annivorsoery Issuc, June, 1939,
Clarksdalc, 1le Pre, 54 ppe

Minuto Books, 1929-=, 2 volss, kopt at the temple, by secrotary, Sam Abrams;
Confirmotion Records, 1934-=, 1 vole; Marriagos, 1933--, 1 vole; Funcral Ro=
cords, 1932-=, 1 vol.; Sunday School Records, 1932~=, 1 vols, 2ll kopt by Rabbi
Ge Je Foigon,in tho tomple; Finoneial Rocords, 1933--, 2 volse, kopt by Harry
Magdovitz, treasurer, in the tomple; Minutes of Ladios! Aid Socicty, 1920==,

1 vole, kopt by sccretory-troasurer, Mrse We Lovine; Rocords of the Mississippi
Instituto of Jewish and Cognate Studics, 1939--, 1 loosc-leaf vole, contains
names of studonts, officors, graduates, minutos, kopt in the study of rabbi, in
the temple; Dood: Decd Book 97, pe 532, in office of chancery clork of Coahoma
County, Clarksdalo; Incorporation: Soccretary of Statec, Jackson, Record of Char=
ters, 1938-39, pe 384 (Institutc of Jowish and Cognatc Studiocs)s

20e CONGREGATION BETH ISRAEL (Housc of Isracl), 1897--, Williomson and
W. Washington Sts., Grocmwood, Lefloro Countye

Orgonized October 6th, 1897 Tho congregation purchased the old Episcopal
Church of the Nativity building, on Manin St. in 1902 (Sco Inventory of the Church
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Archives of Mississippi: Protestant Episcopal Church). In 1914, this build-
ing we.s destroyed by fire and the lot was solde The present temple, on William-
gon and W. Washington Sts., was completed and dedicated in March 1918. It is
of brick construction, with stained-glass windows, and numerous other memorials
and & pipe organ. An organization for the women of Temple Beth Israel, the

- Hebrew Ledies! Sewing Society was organized October 24th, 1898 and continued
thus to at least 1905 The woman's work of the temple then developed into a
Ladiest Aid and, in 1919, as the Temple Sisterhood, became affiliated with the
National Federstion of Temple Sistorhoods(Seec Entry 2)e The Albert Weiler
Lodge (formerly Mark Stoin Lodge), B'™mei B'rith, was organized in 1894 (Seo
Entry 1). A Jewish Young People's League wes organized September 1938 (Sce
Entry 4). Beth Isracl Congregation joined the Union of Americen Hebrew Con-
grogations, October 17th, 1904. Sorvices follow the Union Praycr Book. Mil-
lard Kronachor Woiler is prosident of the congrogatione There never has boon
o residont rabbie The rabbi from Hebrew Union Temple, Greenvillo, has chargo
of the sorvicos hores ot presont, ond for the last five years, has boon Rabbi
Somuel Ae Robinowitze Twenty-throo members werc roported in 1940, Of the two
Torahs, or scrolls of thc law, ownocd by tho tomple, onc is said %o bo 150 yoars
olde

Sco: Anonymous, "Both Isracl Tomple," Greemwood Commonwoolth, Oct. 7th,
1897,

Minutc Book, 1939--, 1 vol., kopt by Mrs. August Thalhcimor, We Markot St.;
Finoncial Rocords, 1919--, 1 vol., kopt by Joc Hymmn, troasurcr, in his homo,
Goorgc Ste; Docds: Dood Book 22, pe 3203 Book 23, pe 98; Book 42, pp. 566=567;
Book 49, pe 4223 Book 55, pe 544, in offico of chancery clork of Lefloro County,
Grocnwood e

21. CONGREGATION BETH-EL (Houso of God), 1904--, Spring St., Loxingbton,
Holmos Countye

Organizcd in 1904 and on February 19th, of that yoar, tho congrogation
joined the Union of American Hobrew Congregoationse In 1905, on a lot donated
by Mre Morris Lowis, thc prosont temple was orocted, on Spring St. It is &
small frame structurc, with an cntrancc hall, Sabbath School rooms on cither
sidc, end cight momorial windowss Robbi Ae Brill, was the first rabbi, 1905~
11. Ho was succcoded by Rabbi Sol Kory, now dccoasods Rabbi Stanloy Re. Bravy
of Vicksburg, sorves thc templc todays Therc woro 30 mombors in 1940 Tho
Julie Lowis Sistorhood, succcoding o Ladios! Aid Socicty, organized in 1910,
joincd the National Fodoration of Tomple Sistorhoods in 1922 (Sec Entry 1)
Servicos in the tomple follow tho roform rito of tho Union Prayor Booke

No rccords. keptes Deeds Dood Book 21, Ppe 639, in offico of the chancory
clerk of Holmos County, Loxingtone

9. *CONGREGATION AHAVAS ACHIM ANSHEI, {AHAVAS ACHNM} (Brothorly Love)
1900~¢,1906, Vicksburg, Warren Countye

Orgonized in 1900, In 1906, tho congregation was chartored by the Stato
as on @rthodox congrogation, although orthodox services had becn held provi-
ously in Vicksburgs At the time of incorporction services werc boing held
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in the old Masonic Temple Bldg., at Washington and Grove Sts. President was
Samuel Marcus, who was one of the incorporatorss Other incorporators were:

M. Borkin, Ike Pearham, M. Marcus, Joe Barkin, I. Kaufman, Alexander Astrov,
I« Shempert, Jacob Spiel, Jacob Cohn, Michael Sparr, I. Rigler, Leon Pogafsky,
M. Apteker, This congregation was extremely short-lived.

Incorporation: Secrctary of State, Jackson, Record of Incorporations,
Book 14:, Pe 419,

SSETH ISRAEL, (Congregation of Israel), 1906--,
t., Laurel, Jones Countys.

23, COIGREGATION KWNESE
5th Ave. and 8th S

Organized 1906. The first building, & frome structure, was located on
the corner of 5th end Short 6th Sts. The presont temple, at 5th Ave. and
8th St., was bogun in 1931, completed and dedicatoed in April 1952. It is
a small structure of Gothic architccturc. A Sabbath School has been mein-
taincd since orgonizoation of the congregatione In 1915, the women of the
church organized a Temple Sisterhood which cffiliated with the Netional Fed-
cretion of Temple Sistorhoods in 1926 (scc Intry 2)e Lourel Lodge, B'nai
B'rith, was also organized in 1910 (sce Bntry l)s The congregution hus never
had o full time rabbi, being sorved by the’rebbi from Hatticsburg, at proscnt
Rebbi Arthur Brodeys There is o Jewish cemetery adjoining the Leurel city
cometorye Tho congregation is o member of tho Union of Orthodox Hobrew Con-
gregetions of Amcrica ond joined the Union of Amcrican Hebrew Congrogotions
in 1940, although the roform prayer-book had alrcady been in usce

Templc Register, 1907--, 5 volse, including financial records, kept by
Deve Matison, president, in thc temple; Minutcs Hottiesburg-Lourcl Zionist
District, 1936--, 1 vol., kept by the sccrotury, Hoermen Katz, at his homo,
. Pinc St., Haotticsburg; Deedss Dccd Book A, pe 2033 Book U, pe 82, in
office of chencery clork of Jones County, Leurcl; Incorporations Socretoery
of Stote, Jackson, Record of Incorporations, Book 14, ppe 121-1224

24, %CONGREGATION KAITELAS JAKEF (Congregntion of Jacob), c.1905-c.1915,

Clerksdale, Cochoma Countye

Organized ¢.1905. 1In Septomber 1910, the congregetion was incorporcted,
with Joe Binder, B. Leverson, I. Kantrowitz, A. Shepshelowitz, We. Binder,
and M. Loverson, &s incorporatorse Scrvicocs wero held in the Knights of
Pythios Halle In 1910 the congregation merged with Clorksdelets. Beth Isracl
congrogation ond a temple built (sco Entry 19)e

Incorporation: Scerctary of State, Jackson, Record of Incorporations,
Book 17, ps 209

5. CONGREGATION B'NAI ISKAEL (Children of Israel), 1915--, W. Pine
St., Hatticsburg, Forrcst Countys

Organized September 5th, 1915, first scrviccs being held in the 0dd
Follow's Hall, on Front Ste There had boen Jows in Hetticsburg as corly as
1901, in which ycar Mauricc Droyfus cumo from Brookhaven to opercte o saw and
ploning mill. From ecrly timcs both roform «nd orthodox services hive been
helde During the Viorld Vier severcl hundred Jewish soldicrs ot nearby Coamp
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Sheolby wore ministered to and entertained by the Hattiosburg congrogatione
. The present synagogue, on We Pine Sts., is the original. The lund for same
was purchosed March 4th, 1919 and the present building wos crccted in 1920.
It is a simple, frome structure pointed white, with an oudi®orium, and Sun=
dey School ond ossombly rooms in the basements. The material from the Jowish
TWolfare Board hut at Comp Shelby, rccrcation hut during the World Wor, wos
used in the crcoection of the synagogucs A cemetery was purchased on Junc 20th,
1935, The Hatticsburg Tomple Sisterhood was organized October 22nd, 1914.
This Sisterhood joined the Nationaol Federation of Templo Sisterhoods in 1930
(sec Entry 2). Hatticsburg Lodge, B'mai Blrith, wos organized in 1908 (®ce
Entry 1) Binai Isracl joinod the Union of Americon Hebrew Congregotions
Fobruary 13th, 1934. . Hattiesburg chapter of Hodassah was organized in 1939
(see Entry 3), and o Jewish Youth group in 1940 (sec Entry 4)e The first
ordeinod rosident rabbi took charge in Soptember, 1935, when Rabbi .irthur
Brodey, the present rabbi, took charge of the congregation and religious
school as a roform rabbie Orthodox services are still held from time to time,
conducted by Som Eisman, loyman; but orthodox ond rcform constitutc onc con=
grogations Thirty-six families, comprising 140 persons arc reported in 1940.

Sec: Arthur Brodey, "B'nai Israel Comgrogation," in Hattiesburg Ameri-
con, September 19th, 1936 i

Minutc Book, 1915--, 1 vole, kept by Herman Kotz, in his home, W. Pine
Ste; Confirmetion Records, 1935--, 1 vole, kept by Rabbi Lrthur Brodoy, in
his home, Second Avee; Financial Records, 1925--, 2 volse, kept by treasur=
er, Poul Waldoff, in his offico, Mobile Ste; Sunday School Records, 1935--,
1 vole, kept by Robbi Arthur Brodoy, in his homo, Socond Avee; Hatticsburg
Jewish Wolfare Fund Minutes, 1936--, 1 vole., including also financial records,
kept by president, Mox M. Mrbel, in his office in the Forrest Hotel; linutes
Hottiesburg-Lourel Zionist District, 1936--, 1 vole, kept by secrectary, Her-
man Katz, at his homc, We Pine SC.; Incorporation: . Sceretary of State, Jock=
son, Record of Charters, Book 31, pe 433; Doed: Book 20, Pe 156 (tomplec)s
Book 48, pe 54, in office of chancery clerk of Forrest County, Hottiesburge

26. CONGREGATION ADATH ISRAEL, (Congrogation of Isracl), 1923=-,
Boliver ond Shelby Stse, Clevelond, Bolivar Countye

Orgonized Fobruary l2th, 1923e Services were held in the High School
auditorium for four yearse In 1927, o synagogue, of mingled classical and
Moorish design was erocted on tho corner of Bolivar ond Shelby Sts., ond
dedicatod on March 10th of that yoare Rabbi Jocob Holevi, wos the first set-
tled robbi, 1928-3le The congregation joined the Union of American Hebrew
Congregations, November 9th, 1934, and the Union Prayer-Book is usede A
Sisterhood, organized in 1920, joined the National Federation of Temple
Sistorhoods in 1927, and includos members from Cleveland, Shaw, Boyle, Meriw
gold, Shelby ond Pace (see Entry 2)e idath Isrnel Lodge, B'nai Brith, wis
orgonized in 1928 (sec Entry 1)e The congregation had 70 contributing fomi-
lies in 1940. The prosent rabbi is Rabbi Newton Je Friedmone

Minute Book, 1928--, 1 vol.; Confirmation Records, 1928==, 1 vole; Fim
nancial Records, 1928--, 1 vol., all kept by secretary, Ben Sklar, in his
storc, Ruleville, MMisse; Deecd: Deeds,Book 14, p. 429, in office of chen=
cory cloerk of Bolivar County, Clovelande
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27« CONGREGATION BETH EL (House of God), 1940--, no present building,

Indianola, Sunflower Countyse

Organized Jenuary 2lst, 1940, by Rabbi Nowbton Je Friedman, of Cleveland.
First services werc held, twice monthly on Sunday aftermoons, in the Masonic
Hall on Main St , through April 1940, and in the American Legion Hut in Moy
There is a Junior Congregation which meets twice o monthe

o Plans arc now be-
ing made for the erection of a building, to be complcted by the fall of 19404
The membership in 1940 was 40 families from Indianola, Moorhead, Isola, Bel=

zonl, Inverness ond Sunflowor.

List of Tcomple Members, 1940--, 1 vols; Templo Financial Records, 1940=--,
1l vol., both kopt by Miss Mourine Weinberge
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TABULLTION REG.RDING SETTLEMENT OF INDIVIDULL JEWS
IN THIRTY~-SIX TYPICAL MISSISSIPFL COUNTIES NOT CONILINING SYNAGOGUES

COUNTY APPROXIMATE FROM WHERE OCCUPATIONS OTHER INFORMATION
' YEAR OF BMIGRATED

SETTLEMENT

OF FIRST

JEWS

1848 Unknown Poddler Semuel Isaacs grantod
Morchant licensc to peddlo in
county 1848, Abram
Hiller sold his mor=-
cantilc business in
Liborty, 1852 Kohne
ville was namcd for a
Jowish merchant, Louls
Kohne

Attala Eorly Germany, Merchant Mrse Lena Falk, organ-
1850ts via New Livory-stable  izod Red Cross in Koscie
Orlcans and owner, Cattle- usko, heclped organizo
Natchoz, doaler, Cotton Gardon Clube lMombers
lator somec buyer of the Simon, Abram,
from Russia Lowenberg, familics
have been active in pub=
lic life in the countys

Carroll Unlcnowm Ikc Summerfield, and
fomily scottlod Carroll=-
ton 1876, Emmanucl Pca-
vy(B. Peavy ond sons )
werc morchonts in 188l

Chickasaw : Gornony, Morchant Simon liyers was sccond
later somc meorchont to locate in
from Portugal Houston, tho county-

seate Later moved to
Okolonne Other Jewish
fomilioss IMicklen=
burgor, Rosumbum, Ru-
bol, Eliase

Clarke ] Unknovm, Horchant Ono of first Jows,

loter from Ovmor of John Champonois, bo=

Kontucky, Cotton= camo neombor of Board

Ohio nills of Supcrvisorse Oscar
Bermon of Ohio and il
Ce Frank of Kontucky
woro ownor and Supor-
intendont of tho Stono=
wall Cotton Mills, at
Stonewall,

Jows werc Morchont liarcus Kotz, 1885-1911,
in the Ifusician conducted sorvicos in
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Tabulation Regerding Settlement Of Individual Jows

COUNTY APPROXTMATE FROM VWHERE OCCUPATIONS
YEAR OF IMIGRATED
SETT LEMENT
OF FIRST
JEWS

Clay county at
(con- its organi-
tinued) zation, 1872

Polend Planter
Alsace Merchant
Germeny Hotel=-operator

Franklin Unknown Farmer
Merchont

Unknown Merchant

OTHER INFORMATION

Masonic Hall, Commerce
Ste, West Point, Isa-
dore Frenkle orsenized
band at Viest Point, di=-
rected Methodist choire.
Barney Semmelmen Leg-
islator, 1916; Captain
Ue Se¢ Army, France, 1918.

Loeb and Marx families
ovned plantations and
slaves before 1861
Isidore Loeb was town=
treasurer at Huzlehurst
in 1880'ss Henry Loeb
woas Hazlehurst town-
clerk, 1887-1919. Paul
Kemp now Alderman and
Cerroll Kemp now Attor-
ney for town of Hazle-
hurste. Othor familiess
Prosscr, Phelns, Levi,
Jocoby, Daniols, Wick-
crt, Litchonstoin,
Morris, Jonas, Kahn,
among othorse

Only four fomilies of
Jows cver settled in
county: Mosecs family

as farmers, 1885, nea
Hemburge In 1914, Kahn
and Shiff familics set=-
tled at Zude, and Mrse
Carrol Scott, at Eddice=
ton.

Joscph end Fannic Lon-
don bought lend and were
opcrating o mercantile
business in Luccdulc,
1898+ Mr. London one

of the orgonizers of
Bank of Lucodale, 1903
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Tabulation Regarding Sottloment Of Individual Jows

COUNTY APPROXIMATE
YEAR OF
SETTLEMENT
OF FIRST
JEWS

FROM WIERE
EMIGRATED

OCCUPATION

No Jcws
scom over to
have scttled
in Grocnoe
County

Greoenc

Harrison 1855 Chiefly Now

Orlcans

Mcrchonts

Humphrcy s Polond Morchant

No Jews

socm ¢ver

to have
sottled in
Jasper Countye

Jasper

Morchant
Cattle=
roiscr
Bankor

Jofforson 1820's Unknown

Peddler
Merchant
Land=-owner

Before
1861

Germony
via
Neow York

Kemper

OTHER INFORMATION

Thoro was formerly o Jow=
ish cemotecry on Roynoir St.,
Biloxi, Decded to L. Klop-
mon and other officors of
tho Congrogation of tho
Hebrow Socicty of Now
Orloans, luge 25, 1853,

"to be usod as o burying
ground until thore shall
be o Synagoguc in thce Towm
of Biloxi" (Chancory Clork,
Horrison County, Gulfport,
Deod Book 6, ppe 518-520),
Jowish fomilies: Shacffor,
Kuhon, Bornstoin, Picord,
among otherse

Morris Cohn camc to Bol-
zoni in 1880, ond was lat-
cr an Alderman of tho town.

First Jows sottled Rodnoy
whon that was an important
rivor town, now live chicf-
ly in Faycttoe Fomilies:
Rubbol, Eisomon, Strauss,
Cohn, Hirsch, Krauss, Ferd-
inand Kraouss,o Confedorate
soldior.

lMorx Rosonboum ond wifo ar=
rived Kempor County. Itin-
orent poddlor, finally built
ovm store. Onc son,Charles,




Tabulation Rogoarding Settlemont Of Individual Jews

COUNTY

Kempor
(con-
tinuod)

afoyotte

Lawrenco

Marion

Morshall

APPROXTEATE
YEAR OF
SETTLEMENT
OF FIRST
JEWS

FROM WHERE
EMIGRATED

1870*'s Unknown

Louisiana,
Sumrall,

Misse

Thore is no
rocord of Jows
scttling in
Lawrence County
1870 Gormany
originally

Unknown

Alsaco
Russia

- 80 =

OCCUP.LTION

Morchant

Jowoler
lMorchant

Morchant

Morchant

OTHER INFORMATION

become woalthiest mor-
chant and land-ovmer

in county. Two sons,
Jacob and Aaron, killed
in Civil War. Jacob
Jonas postmaster at Su-
carnoochee, 1871 to World
Wore At time of death
oldest postmastor in Ue Se
Joc Cromer has boon presi=-
dont of the Scooba Bank
ond trustoc of tho agri-
cultural High Schoole

Fow Jows in county. dJow-
ish family nomos: Fried-
man, Bornstein, Coloman,
Friond, Myors, Glick,
Bronnor, Borrymane

Bornhordt Wolf, Jowelor,
arrived 19063 Zacharius
Cohon, merchant, arrived
Lumborton, 1912. Other
fomilies: .dlor, Soidlor,
Bock, Rubonstcin, Capor=
ton, Groonburg, Pellmone

Emil Strous ono of oarli-
ost scttlcerse Abc Plaugh of
Chomical Cos, Memphis,
lived Green Ste, Tupclo,
in 1890's. Othor nomos:
Dormth, Romonsky, Franks,
Motz, Woiner, Bloom, Pcltz,
Shormon, Woile

Nomos: lMyers,Wigransky

Ie Ce Lovy from Alsaca in
1857, cnlisted Confedorate
Army. Raphoel Shumokor
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Tobulotion Regarding Scttlement Of Individual Jows

COUNTY

Mexghall
(con~
tinued )

Newbon

Pontotoc

L PPROXTIMATE
YEAR OF
SETTLELENT
OF FIRST
JEWS

FROI WHERE
SMIGRATED

Unknowm
later,
Austria,
Kentucky

Unknown

Poland
England

Germany

via
Philadelphia
later, Mem-
phis

No Jews secm
to have set-
tled pocrmon-
ontly in Ran-
kin Countye

Unknown -
Poland

1860*%s

OCCUPATIONS

Merchant

Merchant

Merchant

Merchant

Merchant
Cotton-
buyer

Saloon~keeper
Merchant

OTHER INFORMATION

carmc in 1867 from Russine
Beginning 1900, dJowish
sorvices held in Shumaker
home by I« De Blumenthal
and Shumckcere Othor namos:
Levy, Sossol, Groskind,
Leibson, Myors, Barnotbe

lbso Wisc and Joo Eogle
(Bagle and Wise) merchantse
Other names: Lavene,
Feldmen, Kasden.

Settled Batesvilles Ab-
tend services in Memphise

Dave Danziger, Poland,
first Jew in countye. Som
Goldstein (under name of
Mnir Cahon) from England,
18734 Other names: For=
bert, Pollocke

Honry Bissinger, a foot-
peddler, 1840%*se Lator
went into business, with
Wolf Stoppachers Othor
nomes:s Rauch, Gordon
(scc Pontotoc Progross,
Auge 24, 1939)e

Josuis (Jake) Mondel set=
tlod Boldwyn, 1870e Si-
mon Kartuskey arrived 1900e
Othor namcs: Kostleman,
Foldmane

Namos: [Abrahom, Barnett,
Flcischmene




Tabulation Regording Settlement Of Individual Jews

COUNTY

Sharkey

Tishomingo Unknown

Webster

Yaildbushe

Yazoo

APPROXIMATE FROM WHERE
YEAR OF EMIGRATED
SETTLEMENT

OF FIRST

JEWS

1870ts Unknown

Russia
Lithuania

Unknown

Unknowm

Unknown

Elsowhore in
Mississippi
New York

Unknown

B0

OCCUPATION

Merchont
Liquor-

dealcr Plant-

er

Mcrchant
Physician

Peddlor

Morchant

Mcrchant

lMorchant

Peddlor
Merchont

Merchant

OTHER INFORMATION

N. Picard was first cir-
cuit and chancory clerk,
1876+ Se Dover, trcasur-
or of county, 1900s G
Blum, troasuvsr of county,
18984 Othor names: Os=-
troffsky, Sanai, Pearl,
Dictzer, Klauss

Simon Lesscr scttled Cold-
water, 18754 Othor namos:
Friedlander, Kahn, Frank,

Goldstein, Kallar, Yaffic,
Stoine

Loon Gans one of few Jows

to sottle in county, 1870
Numecrous peddlers worked
county, onc, Honry Simon,
enlisted Confederatec Army
(Sce Polico Minutos, Tip-
pah County, Vole I, pe 255)e

No permonent Jowish rosi=
dentse Onc family in Coun=
ty ot proscnt (Iuka)e

Family namoss Kalisky,
Loibson, Roscnthal, Shor-
man, Borgone

Louic Scligman sottlod
Buporo, 1890, Othor namcs:
Philips, Weisbcrge

Loopold Newburgor scttlcd
Coffcovillec, 1850, peddler,
then janitor, thon clorkgs
Son, Ezckicl, had mcrcon-
tilo business but moved to
Ste Louis laters

Scveral Yazoo County Jows
in Confeoderatc Army, Emilec
Schacffnor (or Schaofer,
500 Wolf ope Cite, pe 219)e
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Tabulation Regerding Scttlement Of Individual Jows

COUNTY LPPROXIMATE FROM WHERE OCCUPATION OTHER INFORMATION
YEAR OF EMIGRATED
SETTLEMENT
OF FIRST
JEWS

Yazoo Dave Wolerstecin, died

(con~ 1936, wos Yozoo City

tinued) Scerctary of Comicreo.
A part of the city cemo=
tory is sot apart for
Jows (Plat Book 3, pe 4)e
Occasional services havo
beon hold sincc 1865, at
proscnt by o lay-man, No-
than Ostrov, in the Ma-
sonic Templee
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INDEX TO CONGREGATIONS, INSTITUTIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS, CHRONOLOGICAL

DATE OF
ORGANIZATION

c+1800
1840
184L
1845
1859
1861
1868

CONGREGATION OR

ORGANIZATION

*Orthodox
B'nai Israel
Anshe Chesed
B'nai Israel

Gemiluth Chassed

Beth Israel
Beth Israel

LOCATION

Natchez
Natchez
Vicksburg
Columbus
Port Gibson
Jackson
Meridien

PAGE

14
15
15
16
e
1
18

c.1870 *Ohaveh Scholem Summit 19
1877 B'nai Israel Centon 18
1877 *Hebrew Young

Ments Literary
and Dramatic Ass. Meridian ] 18

c. 1878 *Beth Israel Woodville 19
1880 Ohel Jacob Meridian 20
1880 Hebrew Union Greenville 20
1893 Ahavath Rayim Greenwood 2l
1894 B'nai Sholom Brookhaven 21
1896 Beth Israel Clarksdale 21
1897 - Beth Israel Greenwood 22
1904 Beth-E1l Lexington i 23
1906 xAhavas Achim Ansheil Vicksburg z 23
1906 Knesesseth Israel Laurel 24

ce3910 *Kahelas Jekef Clarksdale 24
1915 B'nai Israel Hattiesburg 24
1923 Adath Israel Cleveland 25
1924 Netional Federation

of Temple Sisterhoods,
Mississippi State
Federation
International Order

of B'nai Btrith,
Mississippi State
Conflerence
Mississippi Insti-
tute of Jewish and
Cognate Studies,
Clarksdale

Hadassah

Mississippi Federa-
tion of Temple Youkh
Beth-El Tndianola

i
I3
B
i
o

% Inactive Congregations, Institutions, or Organizations




CONGREG.TION
OR ORGANIZATION

Adath Isroel

*ihavas Achim Ansheil

Ahoveth Reyim

Anshe Chesed

Beth Isracl

Beth Israol

Both Israel

Both Isroecl

*Both Isracl

Both=-ELl

Both-EL

Btnai Israel

Btnai Isroecl

B'nai Isracl

Btnai Isracl

Btnai Sholom

Gemiluth Chasscd

Hodassah

Hebrew Union

*xHebrow Young Mon's Literory
and Dramatic Asse
International Order Bfnai Btrith,
Mississippi State Conferonco
*Kaholas Jokef

Knosesseth Isracl

Mississippi Fedcration of Temple
Youth

Mississippi Institute of Jewish and
Cognate Studics

Notional Foderation of Tomplo
Sisterhoods, Mississippi State
Federation.

Ohel Jacob

*Oh&¥yoh Scholem

*Orthodox
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LOCATION

Clevoland
Vicksburg
Grecnwood
Vicksburg
Clarksdale
Greonwood
Jack son
Meridian
Woodville
Indianola
Loxington
Canton
Columbus
Hottiosburg
Natchez
Brookhavon
Port Gibson

Greenville
Meridian

Clarksdale
Laurel

Clarksdale

Meridion
Summit
Naotchez

INDEX TO CONGREG.TIONS, INSTITUTIONS, AND ORGANIZATIONS, BY NAME

ENTRY

26
20
17
{

19
20
10
11
27
21
12
25

18

16

11

24
23

19

f x Inactive Congregation, Institution, or Orgonization

PAGE

25
23
21
15
2l
22
17
18
1L,
26
23
18
16
24
15
i o
il

20
18
24
24
13
21
11
20

19
14




TEWN

Brookheven
Canton

Clarksdale
Clarksdale
Clarksdale

Cleveland
Columbus
Greenville
Greenwood
Grecnwood.
Hatticsburg
Indianola
Jackson
Lourel
Lexington
Meridian
Meridian
Meridian

Natechez
Natchez
Port Gibson
Summit
Vicksburg
Vicksburg
Woodville

INDEX TO CONGREGATIONS, INSTITUTIONS,

CONGREGATION

OR INSTITUTION

Btnai Sholom
Btnai Israel
Beth Isracl

*Kahelas Jakef
Mississippi Institute of Jewish
and Cognate Studies

Adoth Isroel
Btnai Isracl
Hebrew Union

Ahavath Rayim

Beth Israel
Btnoi Israel
Beth~-El

Beth Isracl

Knososseth Israecl

Beth-EL
Both Israel
Ohel Jocob

*Hebrew Young Men!s
Literary and Dromatic Asse

Btnai Israel

*0Orthodox
Gemiluth Chassed
*Ohaveh Scholem

Anshe Chesed

xAhavas Achim Anshei
*Both Isracl

ENTRY

18
12
19
24

* Inactive Congregations, Orgonizations or Institutions

AND ORGANEZATIONS, BY LOCATION

PAGE

21
18
21
24

21
25
16
20
2L
22

26
17
24

18
20

18
15
14
i
19
16
23
19




COUNTY
Adams
Boliver
Cleiborne
Coahoma
Forrest
Hinds
Holmes
Jones
Lauderdale
Leflore
Lincoln
Lowndes
Madison
Pilke

Sunf lowver
Worren
Washington
Wilkinson

INDEX BY COUNTIES

A0S

ENTRY
5, 6
26

9
10,24
25

10

21

23
170,048
17,20
18

8

)

13

27

7, 22
16

14
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qlstorlcul Records Survey, Invontory of the County Archives of Mississippi,
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Historical Records Survey, Inventory of the County irchives of Mississippi,
Noe 18, Forrest County, Jackson, “THistorical Rocords Survey, June 1938,

| e (Y, 190 e

| Mississippi Historical Records Survey Project, Inventory of the County

Archives of Mississippi, No. 22, Gronada County, Jockson, Mississippi
Tistorical Rocords survey Projoct; April 1940, mime, (v, 172 ppe)e

Historical Records Survey, Inventory of the County Archives of Mississippi
Noe 37, Lomar County, Jockson, Historical Reocords Survey, July 1939,
ﬂﬁ.m., (Vi, 329 PPe 5'

Historical Rocords Survey, Inventory of the County Archives of Mississippi,

No. 55, Poarl River County, Jackuon, , Historical Rocords Survey,
Fobruary 1938, mimMes (Ve 127 DDe)e

Historical Records Survey, Sargent's Code, A Collcction of the Original Laws
of the Mississippi Territory Enacted 17959-1800 by Govornor Wlnthrqg
Sergent and the Territorial Judges, Jackson, Historicel Rocords Survoy,

Junc 1939, mime, (iX, 168 DPPe)e

Mississippi Historical Rocords Survey Project, Invontory of of the Church Archives
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